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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH
ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the
Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and
should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of E Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company” or “E Lighting”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “"GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the
information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are
no other matters the omission of which would make any statement
herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

E Lighting, a listed company with its business rooted in Hong
Kong and also the most established retail chain group of lighting
and household products in Hong Kong, is devoted to social
responsibility. During the year, the Group has been honoured a
“Caring Company” for two consecutive years, which has fully
illustrated the Group's corporate spirit to care for the community
and reach out to the underprivileged. Moreover, the Group have
participating in the “Fluorescent Lamp Recycling Programme”,
which provides households with free collection and treatment for
all used mercury-containing lamps to reduce the environmental
risk from improper disposal of these lamps and recover resources.

Despite the extremely challenging business environment,
E Lighting has continued to promote its existing business
development. E Lighting will maintain a flexible and tailored sales
and marketing strategy to offer its consumers with diversified
and modern choices by accurately procuring the suitable products
for the domestic market, which will in turn reinforce E Lighting’s
leading market position.

E Lighting continued its efforts in the development of its existing
lighting product business, whilst proactively exploring potential
investment opportunities. In June 2015, the Group successfully
acquired a tableware and giftware supplier, Trendmall Group
through issuance of convertible bonds. This enable us to leverage
the capital market to grow the business rapidly. The acquisition
has not only expanded the Group’s existing business portfolio,
but also broadened its source of income by diversifying into other
businesses with growth potential. Moreover, Trendmall Group
happened to share the same principles of the Group to offer
tailor-made household products and customised services to its
customers.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FfE#H &

Looking forward, the Group will adopt more cautious investment
strategies, which will be executed with prudence and closely
control its expenditure in order to maintain its competitiveness.
The Group will strive to maintain a streamlined business operation,
while catering for consumers’ specific needs and being responsive
to market changes. Leveraging the strong support of the capital
market, our own strengths, and the global trends of saving energy,
protecting the environment and pursuing a higher quality of life,
the Group is remain confident about its development in the future.
Meanwhile, we will pay more attention to economic change and
take every chance to identify any suitable investment opportunity
in the market for the Group. We will continue to maintain steady
growth and to maximise returns for our investors.

Hue Kwok Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2016
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Dear Shareholders,

| present the results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016.

This financial year was a year full of challenges to E Lighting.
In first half of financial year, E Lighting proactively executed
the expansion plan and opened a KARTELL flagship in Central
and “E Lighting” in Kowloon Bay. Unfortunately, the economic
and political uncertainty in Hong Kong have led to continuous
diminishing consumer spending momentum, and the retail markets
experienced a difficult operating environment. Having considered
the changes in the business environment, E Lighting has slowed
down the expansion plan and concentrated on the consolidation of
retail network and optimisation of product-mix.

In June 2015, the Group successfully acquired a tableware and
giftware supplier, Trendmall Group. The acquisition has further
broadened the Group’s source of income by expanding the
Group's existing business portfolio and diversifying into other
businesses with growth potential.

During the year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$106,488,000, representing an increase of approximately
32.4% from approximately HK$80,416,000 as compared with that
of the preceding year. The increase was mainly contributed by the
expansion of new stores and acquisition of business in tableware
and giftware during current financial year.

During the year, revenue of the retail chain business in lighting
and designer label furniture was approximately HK$85,911,000,
representing an increase of approximately 6.8% from
approximately HK$80,416,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year.

Revenue of the business in tableware and giftware from the
date of acquisition to 31 March 2016 was approximately
HK$20,577,000.

During the year, the Group’s gross profit was approximately
HK$49,399,000 and recorded a profit of approximately
HK$5,657,000. As a result of the acquisition of Trendmall Group,
the Group’s net assets increased by 149.3%, from approximately
HK$52,738,000 of last year to approximately HK$78,755,000 at
year end.
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The retail environment of Hong Kong market remain sluggish and
the coming year will undoubtedly be challenging. To cope with the
challenges ahead, the Group will continue to concentrate on the
consolidation of retail network, optimisation of product-mix and
intensification of cost control. The Group will focus on preserving
and enhancing sales and profits, and also take proactive steps to
reduce inventory level and storage costs in order to improve its
performance. Besides, the Directors believe that the Group will
benefit from the reduction of shop rental in the year 2016 that
reduce the rental cost pressure of the Group.

Lastly, | hereby express my sincere gratitude to all shareholders,
investors, business partners, staff and customers on behalf of E
Lighting. In spite of the challenges ahead, E Lighting will step
forward with ambitious entrepreneurship to reward for the
continuous supports from all parties.

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond
Founder and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 22 June 2016
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review

Retail chain business in lighting and designer label furniture is the
core business of the Group. Being the most established retail chain
group of lighting products in Hong Kong, E Lighting possesses
rich experience in the sale of quality lighting and designer label
furniture products from all over the world. During the year ended
31 March 2016, E Lighting was cautious in its retail network
development due to the sluggish retail environment. E Lighting
has slowed down the expansion plan and concentrated on the
consolidation of retail network and optimisation of the product
mix.

During the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue of the retail chain
business in lighting and designer label furniture was approximately
HK$85,911,000, representing an increase of approximately 6.8%
as compared with that of the preceding year.

In June 2015, the Group successfully acquired a tableware and
giftware supplier, Trendmall Group. The acquisition has expanded
the Group's existing business portfolio, and broadened its source
of income and additional cash flows. Revenue of the business
in tableware and giftware from the date of acquisition to 31
March 2016 was approximately HK$20,577,000, accounted for
approximately 19.3% of the Group’s revenue.

Future Outlook

The retail environment of Hong Kong market remain sluggish and
the coming year will undoubtedly be challenging. To cope with the
challenges ahead, the Group will continue to concentrate on the
consolidation of retail network, optimisation of product-mix and
intensification of cost control. The Group will focus on preserving
and enhancing sales and profits, and also take proactive steps to
reduce inventory level and storage costs in order to improve its
performance. Besides, the Directors believe that the Group will
benefit from the reduction of shop rental in the year 2016 that
reduce the rental cost pressure of the Group.
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In addition, the underlying demand for residential properties is
strong and measures have been announced in the 2016 Policy
Address to increase housing supply to meet with demands. In
the long run, with the step up efforts of the Government of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the “Government”) to
increase housing supply in the next five years, more housing units
are expected to be completed. Therefore, E Lighting is afforded
with new opportunities in its various lines of business.

Looking forward, the Group expects the Government’s effort
to step up supply of residential units in Hong Kong will drive
demand for lighting and household products. The Group will
strive to maintain a streamlined business operation, while catering
for consumers’ specific needs and being responsive to market
changes. Leveraging the strong support of the capital market, our
own strengths, and the global trends of saving energy, protecting
the environment and pursuing a higher quality of life, the Group is
cautiously confident about its development in the future. We will
continue to maintain steady growth and to maximise returns for
our investors.

Financial Review

During the year, the Group’s revenue was approximately
HK$106,488,000, representing an increase of approximately
32.4% from approximately HK$80,416,000 as compared with that
of the preceding year. The increase was mainly contributed by the
expansion of new stores and acquisition of business in tableware
and giftware during current financial year.

During the year, revenue of the retail chain business in lighting
and designer label furniture was approximately HK$85,911,000,
representing an increase of approximately 6.8% from
approximately HK$80,416,000 as compared with that of the
preceding year.

Revenue of the business in tableware and giftware from the
date of acquisition to 31 March 2016 was approximately
HK$20,577,000.

During the year, the Group’s gross profit was approximately
HK$49,399,000, representing an increase of approximately 9.7%
from approximately HK$45,046,000 as compared with that of
the preceding year. The increase was primarily due to increase in
sales. During the year, The Group’s overall gross profit margin was
approximately 46.4%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS EE@smk o

During the year, the Group’s selling and distribution expenses
was approximately HK$41,332,000, representing an increase of
approximately 12.2% from HK$36,824,000 as compared with that
of the preceding year. Selling and distribution expenses primarily
consist of rentals for retail outlets and related expenses, staff costs
(including salaries and sales commission to salesperson), electronic
payment charges and depreciation. The increase was primarily due
to increase in rental expenses and staff costs.

During the year, the Group’s administrative and other expenses
was approximately HK$21,576,000, representing an increase
of approximately 4.9% from HK$20,570,000 as compared with
that of the preceding year. Administrative and other expenses
primarily consist of rentals for office premises and warehousing
facilities, staff costs (including salaries to administrative staff and
emoluments to directors) and professional expenses. The increase
was primarily due to the net effect of increase in rental expenses
and staff costs and the absence of an one-off listing expenses
during the year.

The Group recorded a profit of approximately HK$5,657,000
during the year (2015: loss of approximately HK$12,697,000).

On 4 June 2015, the Group completed the acquisition of 100%
equity interest of Top Investor Global Limited and its subsidiaries
(together collectively referred as “Trendmall Group”) (the
"Acquisition”). Detailed of the acquisition are set out in note 25 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Save for those disclosed in this Report, there were neither
significant investments held as at 31 March 2016 nor material
acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries during the year ended 31
March 2016.

Save for those disclosed in this Report, there is no plan for material
investments or capital assets as at the date of this Report.
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As at 31 March 2016, the Group had bank balances of
approximately HK$15,991,000. The gearing ratio of the Group,
calculated as total bank borrowings over total equity, was nil as at
31 March 2016 (2015 : Nil), as the Group financed the operations
from internally generated funds and advance from a controlling
shareholder, and did not raise any external debt financing during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

The Group closely monitors the cash flow position to ensure that
the Group has sufficient working capital available to fulfill its
operational requirement. The Group takes into account the trade
receivables, trade payables, cash and bank balances, administrative
and capital expenditures to prepare cash flow forecast to forecast
the Group’s future liquidity.

Capital Structure

The capital of the Group comprises only ordinary shares.

On 4 June 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,717,500 in connection with
the acquisition of Trendmall Group. During the Reporting Period,
those convertible bonds were converted into 15,310,714 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each at the conversion price of HK$0.7 per
share.

On 26 February 2016, the company issued convertible bonds
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$12,620,245 upon
determination of 2015 Results of the Trendmall Group. During the
year, convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$3,000,000
were converted into 4,285,714 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at
the conversion price of HK$0.7 per share.

Total equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$78,755,000 as at 31 March 2016 (2015:
HK$52,738,000).

On 4 May 2016, convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$9,620,245 were converted into 13,743,207 ordinary shares of
HK$0.01 each at the conversion price of HK$0.7 per share.

Further convertible bonds in an aggregate principal amount

of HK$12,387,255 will be issued by the Company upon the
fulfillment of the profit guarantee.
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As at 31 March 2016, save for those disclosed in this Report,
the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities (2015:
Nil).

The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions denominated
in Hong Kong dollar, Euro, United States dollar and Renminbi,
hence exposure to exchange rate fluctuations arises. We are mainly
exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation of the Euro and Renminbi
against Hong Kong dollar, as Hong Kong dollar is pegged to
United States dollar. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management of the Group
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
The Directors are of the view that the transactional exposure of
the Group in currencies other than the functional currencies is
maintained at an acceptable level.

As at 31 March 2016, there is no charges on the Group’s assets
(2015: Nil).

The Group's segmental information is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitments (2015: Nil).

The board of directors (“Board”) does not recommend the
payment of any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2016 (2015:
Nil).

Total remuneration of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2016 (including (i) Directors’ emoluments, (ii) salaries to staff and
(iiiy MPF contributions) was approximately HK$20,371,000 (2015:
HK$15,495,000). Such increase was mainly due to the increase in
average number of staff during the year and staff salaries.

As at 31 March 2016, the Group had 71 employees (2015: 62
employees).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B @5t wm k2 4

The following is a comparison of the Group’s business plan as set
out in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 September 2014 (the
“Prospectus”) with actual business progress for the year ended 31
March 2016.

Business plan up to 31 March 2016
as set out in the Prospectus
BHIINBRERT
BEE-ZE-AE=ZA=t+-AWELETE

ATREINRARARERAS-_FT—NOFENA
“toAZAERER(HARER DTN ARER
BHAEEBAE T -—R"F=A=1T—HILFED
BREBERNLE -

Actual business progress up to
31 March 2016
BEE-ZE—R"E=ZA=+—H
BRREGER

Expansion of retail floor area (including LED specialty stores, lighting stores, lighting & furniture combined stores)

BAFEREEE(EELEDRFIE - L - AR AGEE)

— explore and identify new districts suitable for new retail outlets

-BREYEEARRTTEN/EHHR

The Group has successfully identified five
suitable retail outlets invShatin, Mongkok,
Whampoa, Kowloon Bay and Central, and in
the process of exploring and identifying new
districts suitable for new retail outlets

REEBDKIIADH - HA - FiF - WEERTP
RARYESHEER WEESKRYEHES
R FT 6 7 I BT &

- negotiate and incept tenancy agreements to enable the The Group has incepted tenancy agreements

anticipated expansion of floor area by an additional 9,000 sq. ft.

- SATRHAIE ANEA SN, 000 75 IR A% [E 18 fE 7 Ko W 2 TH & o

— renovation and furnishing of new retail outlets

- KEMMHTEERE

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

with those five landlords, which will increase
the floor areas of over 7,500 sq. ft. in
aggregate
REBCHZABEREIICHEHERZE &%
N7, 500 5 R A IE E AR

The five new retail outlets at Shatin, Mongkok,
Whampoa, Central and Kowloon Bay,
approximately 7,500 sq. ft. floor area in
aggregate, were operated

WH- A '&E - PIRENAEERRENERS
H#497,500F T REEEED EX 28
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Business plan up to 31 March 2016
as set out in the Prospectus
HIIRNBRERS
BEE-E-ARE=ZA=1+-HWEKTE

Actual business progress up to
31 March 2016
EE-B-A"E=A=1+—-8H
BEREKER

Marketing and promotion of our own branding of trademarks

EIHREER I B KB IR kg

— launch media advertising and promotion in newspaper,
magazine, etc

- EHARESARRBE RS FETER

Solicit new incoming brands to expand product range

FREEFT DA (0 FE LA 98 75 E an AR 2

— probe and explore further new brands of potential
- e kESKEZAE NN @E

Position ourselves to capture LED market
TEM BN A ZHELED TS

— monitor latest development of policies for
replacing Incandescent Light Source with LED
- ERBBALEDRE A B RBUR R &R

— expand our Panasonic LED product range
— AT FIHYPanasonic LEDE R iEEY

The Group has launched advertisement and
promotion in newspaper, magazine and
banner to promote its own branding of
trademarks in the market

AEBERHE  MANERFETEREE®R
EOTmSHEREE

The Group has introduced more than 5 world-
renowned brands from Italy, Austria and
United States and is in the process of probing
and exploring new brands of potential

REED S ABSEKEEARF - BithF| R EEH
MBI MEmME - WEEYNERSRKAE NS
7 om b

The Group is monitoring the latest development
of these policies
AEBEAEERGHEBRNSHER

The Group is negotiating with the supplier to
expand the Panasonic LED product range
755 3 1F 7 BE 1 FE P B P DA S filPanasonic LEDE

LY kit

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS B @5t wm k2 4

Business plan up to 31 March 2016
as set out in the Prospectus
HIIRNBRERS
BEE-ZE-—AFZA=1+—-ANEK:TE

Actual business progress up to
31 March 2016
EEZE-R"F=ZA=+—-H

Strengthen logistics management

DB 75 B HE

— implement new technological system ware for point-of sale
inventory monitoring for new retail outlets

- AT ERENHER T EER BRI ALK

— explore and identify new suitable warehousing facilities,
negotiate and incept tenancy agreement for new warehousing
facilities and commence renovation works, and commence
operation of new warehousing facilities

- aﬁii%@/f\iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ mEE 1:% ﬁm%?ﬁ&ﬁﬁiﬁfﬂﬁﬁ

EMAIREE TR - e fERERn S

The principal risks and uncertainties in implementation of the
Group's business objectives are the failure to implement the
expansion plan successfully. As disclosed in the Prospectus, the
Group planned to expand the retail floor area in Hong Kong
by approximately 12,000 sq. ft. by 30 September 2016. Should
the expansion plan be affected by the uncertain economic and
political outlook in the Hong Kong market unexpectedly, the
Group’s expansion plan may be adversely affected. The Directors
will constantly evaluate the Group’s business objectives and may
change or modify plans against the changing market condition to
attain sustainable business growth of the Group.

Having considered the changes in the business environment, the
Directors have resolved that the Group should slow down and
reduce the scale of the expansion plan. Therefore, there is no
further progress in respect of the plans of expansion of retail floor
area and explore and identify new suitable warehousing facilities.

The Directors will constantly evaluate the Group’s business
objectives and may change or modify plans against the changing
market condition to attain sustainable business growth of the
Group.
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The Group is in the process of implementing the
new technological system ware

Z S MECS kg FUTEY

The Group has increased approximately 7,000
sq.ft. warehousing facilities
REBBILINAI7,000F 5 RV = FERHME
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REeK I EBIERETE - SHMBRERFEE -

AEEFEE_ZE—A"FNA=ZTHANREEE

F4912,000F FREEREEE © WEERETE
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The actual net proceeds from the issue of new shares of the
Company under the placing were approximately HK$33.5 million.
We have adjusted the use of proceeds in the same proportion as
shown in the Prospectus.

On 7 October 2015, the Directors has reviewed the utilisation of
the net proceeds. Having considered the changes in the business
environment, the Directors considered that the current number
of retail stores is correspondingly sufficient to meet the demand
of customers (which has unexpectedly been reduced since the
Listing) and resolved that the Group should slow down and reduce
the scale of the expansion plan. The Directors considered that
the funding requirement of the expansion plan would be reduced
and certain of the net proceeds originally intended to be used for
the expansion would be reallocated for working capital and other
general corporate purpose, in order to improve working capital
position and liquidity of the Group, and enhance the Group’s
capability to capture future business and investment opportunities
(if any). For details, please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 7 October 2015.

An analysis of the utilisation of the actual net proceeds and the
unused amount as at 31 March 2016 is set out below:

ARBRIFEEZRTH D W ERMASIRFER
#R335E&EBT - R HBERERMAR A
RILL BRI S IR A&

R-FE—AFtTALH  ARREFERMENR
HHFBERBR EEIEEREE(  EFR
RENNZTEEHBERARBRENREEFPNF
SKOE B LM AREIMEIRE D) IR 3% AN 5 B 2
KRBT EINRE - EZRRIERFEINE
BeigRd  REBERERTNMEHRBFES
EFfOEREEEES NEM—REERE - U
REAEEZEEESHRN  RBES MRS

SEEBERREHERRERE(INB) 28N - &
BR2HFRARABEHRAS-_FT—AF+AEH

R o

ERMSRBRFEARAEE T —XRE=A
= +—HOREBESELWOT !

Utilised Unused

amount as at amount as at

Net 31 March 31 March

proceeds after 2016 2016

reallocation BE-E—RE BE-_B—AE

REHIEE =ZR=1-H =RA=+-H

FBNERE BEARE REAME

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Use of proceeds FBNERE TET THT THET

a) Expansion of retail floor area ) BRATEEEER 25,740 18,100 7,640
b) Marketing and promotion of our own b) % 84 & #E % {Fi80

branding of trademarks BREEmE 2,138 1,320 818

¢) Strengthen logistics management o MRYMRER 2,309 250 2,059

d) Working capital and other general  d) €844 &
corporate purpose Hii—RARAZ 3,342 3,342 =
Total #ct 33,529 23,012 10,517

The unused net proceeds have been placed as interest bearing
deposits with licensed bank in Hong Kong.

ABANAERIBFRCIERTETEREATE
FrhRERT ©

ERAKEZERARAT —TNFFR 17
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSHREER

Executive Directors

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the chairman
of the Board and head of human resources department. Mr. Hue
Kwok Chiu is responsible for the business development, operations
and business expansion plans and human resources activities of
the Group. Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is the younger brother of Mr. Hui
Kwok Wing and Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond.

Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu has over 17 years of business management
experience and obtained a Bachelor of social sciences degree from
the University of Hong Kong in December 1989.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, aged 53, was appointed as
an executive Director on 26 February 2014. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond is one of the founders and chief executive officer of
the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond is responsible for the
business development, operations and devising market strategy
and business expansion plans of the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond is the younger brother of Mr. Hui Kwok Wing and the
elder brother of Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu.

Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond has over 21 years of experience in
lighting and furniture retails business in Hong Kong and obtained
a Bachelor of arts degree from the University of Hong Kong in
November 1985 and a Master of design degree from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in November 2010.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, aged 54, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 June 2015. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is chief creative
officer of the Group and responsible for the business development
of the Group. Mr. Hui Kwok Wing is the elder brother of Mr. Hui
Kwok Keung Raymond and Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing has over 23 years experience in concept
creation, product design, design management and retail business
management and obtained Bachelor of arts degree in industrial
design from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1989.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chung Wai Man (“Mr. Chung”), aged 52, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014.
Mr. Chung is responsible for providing independent judgement
on the issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct of the Group.

Mr. Chung obtained a Bachelor’s degree (honours) in social
sciences from the University of Hong Kong in December 1989 and
a Master’s degree in international business management from the
City University of Hong Kong in November 1998.

Mr. Chung became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in April 1995 and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants in
the United Kingdom in November 1999.

Mr. Chung has around 26 years of experience in accounting,
taxation and finance. Mr. Chung is currently an independent non-
executive director of Legend Strategy International Holdings Group
Company Limited, which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1355).

Mr. Leung Wai Chuen (“Mr. Leung”), aged 50, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 11 September 2014.
Mr. Leung is responsible for providing independent judgement
on the issue of strategy, performance, resources and standard of
conduct of the Group.

Mr. Leung obtained a Bachelor’s degree in social sciences from the
University of Hong Kong in December 1989, a Master’s degree in
business administration jointly awarded by the University of Wales
and the University of Manchester in July 2001 and a Master’s
degree in business (logistics management) from Royal Melbourne
Institute of Technology (now known as RMIT University) in
September 2007.

Mr. Leung is a practising member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom and an
associate of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators respectively.

B FATES
EEXEE(ERE]D 528 R-B—WEAN
A+ BEEEABYEHTES - BELAR
BARBRTORE - KRB - ARRITRERE
EIR GBI HIH -

BEAR-N\NET-_ABRGSEEAELER
BREELBY - AR -HWANF+—ARBE
BWMMALREREXERBE LB -

ﬁif‘ﬁiﬁé*ﬂjﬁii@Hﬁi?%%i%@?rﬁﬁi“é%‘
R ANNF+—ARKBREFSFEA

/\é\\_%/g\o

BEREBREN265GR  HERMBER - &
5‘&%&%%@.%’*.? BBR AR Z B IEH

TESE  Z2rRBRTERET (RGO R :
1355)°
RERGE(TREE]) 505 RZZE—WEA

A+ —BEZERBIFNTES - RELAR
AAKBEETHRE - X - BRETAERF
ERRMIS I

REAR—NN\NF+_ABRFSEERELEN

BETEY  R_ZET-FLANGEBRHTAZ
RERNBAEHEREIRERE L2 -

UERZZEZ+FNARGERAIERET M5
(REBAERRAEREIAS) I(WREIE)E
+ -

REEDBEB SRS
FeMASE RS E - FER
FWERITHRABERAEEE o

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR

19



20

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT EE R SR EERE

Mr. Leung has over 25 years’ experience in auditing, accounting,
financial management and company secretarial matters. He
worked for and held senior positions in various listed companies in
Hong Kong and was responsible for their finance, accounting and
company secretarial functions. Mr. Leung is the company secretary
of Grand Ming Group Holdings Limited since July 2013, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1271).

Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (“"Ms. Yeung”), aged 51,
was appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
11 September 2014. Ms. Yeung is responsible for providing
independent judgement on the issue of strategy, performance,
resources and standard of conduct of the Group.

Ms. Yeung obtained a Bachelor of arts degree in retail marketing
with honours from the Manchester Metropolitan University in the
United Kingdom in June 1994. She pursued her further study on
legal course and obtained a Diploma in legal practice from the
Manchester Metropolitan University in the United Kingdom in July
1998.

Ms. Yeung became a qualified solicitor of Hong Kong in December
2000.

Ms. Yeung has over 15 years of experience in legal field in private
practise working with various law firms in Hong Kong. She is
currently a legal consultant of Messrs. Wong & Wong Solicitors
since July 2012. Ms. Yeung is currently an independent non-
executive director of Success Universe Group Limited (stock code:
487, formerly known as Macau Success Limited), which is listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Yeung is currently
also an independent non-executive director of Merdeka Resources
Holdings Limited and Tai Shing International (Holdings) Limited,
which are listed on GEM (stock code: 8163 and 8103). Ms. Yeung
was also an independent non-executive director of Dejin Resources
Group Company Limited from September 2013 to August 2015,
which is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 1163), and Hao Wen Holdings Limited from January 2011 to
July 2014, which is listed on the GEM (stock code: 8019).
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Senior Management

Mr. Chou Hing Yan Stephen (“Mr. Chou”), aged 53, was an
executive director of the Company from 26 February 2014 to 29
February 2016 and employed as senior business manager on 1
March 2016. Mr. Chou is one of the founders of the Group and
responsible for the business, operations and marketing affairs of
the Group.

Mr. Chou has over 12 years of experience in lighting and furniture
retails business in Hong Kong and obtained a Bachelor’s degree in
commerce from McMaster University of Canada in June 1987.

Mr. Wong Peng Lin ("Mr. Wong"”), aged 43, is the operation
manager of the Group. Mr. Wong joined the Group on 1
December 2003. He is primarily responsible for supervising the day
to day operation of the retail stores in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong has
over 12 years of experience in lighting retail business in the Group.

Mr. Chang David (“"Mr. Chang”), aged 46, is the business
development manager of the Group. Mr. Chang joined the Group
on 3 October 2012, he is primarily responsible for overseeing the
business development of the Group in Hong Kong. Mr. Chang is
also responsible to oversee compliance with safety requirements
of all lighting and electrical products offered for sale at the retail
stores, monitor the latest development on safety requirements and
to enhance closer communications between us and the suppliers
in respect of the safety and certification requirements for lighting
and electrical products in Hong Kong. Mr. Chang has over 19 years
of experience in lighting business in Hong Kong.
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Ms. Lam Yi Shun (“Ms. Lam”), aged 31, is the human resources
manager of the Group. Ms. Lam is responsible for overseeing the
human resource and administrative activities of the Group.

Ms. Lam obtained a Bachelor’s degree in human resource
management from the University of Northumbria in England in July
2009 through long distance learning course. Ms. Lam has over 7
years of human resources experience. Prior to joining the Group
on 15 October 2013, she had worked in the human resources
department for a number of listed and multinational companies.

Mr. Lam Chi Yan (“Mr. Lam”), aged 33, is the deputy financial
controller and company secretary of the Group. Mr. Lam joined the
Group on 27 June 2014, he is primarily responsible for overseeing
the financial and daily secretarial matter of the Group.

Mr. Lam obtained a Bachelor of business administration (honours)
in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in November
2005 and is a member and fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since September 2008 and
March 2016 respectively. He has around 10 years of experience
in accounting, auditing, company secretarial and tax consultancy
field.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to achieving high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders of the Company and enhance its corporate value.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules (the "CG Code”). To the best
knowledge of the Board, the Company had complied with the
code provisions in the CG Code during the year.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors in accordance with the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The
Company has made specific enquiries with all Directors and the
Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Required
Standard of Dealings and the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company during the year.

Board of Directors

Up to the date of this annual report, the Board comprises
three executive Directors and three independent non-executive
Directors. The composition of the Board was as follows:

Executive Directors

Hue Kwok Chiu

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond

Hui Kwok Wing (appointed on 19 June 2015)

Independent non-executive Directors
Chung Wai Man

Leung Wai Chuen

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann
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The principal function of the Board is to consider and approve
the overall business plans and strategies of the Group, develop
and implement the corporate governance function, monitor
the implementation of these policies and strategies and the
management of the Company. The Group has an independent
management team, which is led by a team of senior management
with substantial experience and expertise in the Group’s business
and the Board delegates the authority and responsibility for
implementing the Group's policies and strategies.

The Directors can attend meetings in person or through other
means of electronic communication in accordance with the
Company’s articles of association. All minutes of the Board
meetings were recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered
by the Board and the decisions reached.

During the year, six Board meetings were held in addition to
circulation of written resolutions. Details of the attendance of
Directors are as follows:

EEENIEREEERNFLARENEES
a8 RRES - RREVABBEHBERMMITUALR
HARRBRZBRMERE TR EIREFLE
R-BEFERBITAKRERRMREHOED R
BEET - XBUEEENK  ZBFH RS
EHABUASREEGERNRNSREEESR
o

BREBERARFNRARER  REIEEAURFLE
HEBEMEFRETNETEH - MEEES
EENERCHA D FAMMCEMEESTEE
BEOEHRRSHEPRE -

RAFE  RTEMHEERER

REEEEZ

BEEEHIAN
c UTREEEHFECHNFE -

Attendance
HE =

Executive Directors
HITES
Hue Kwok Chiu 6/6
FTEI S
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond 6/6
FFEY 8
Chou Hing Yan Stephen (resigned on 1 March 2016) 6/6
MEBLC (R=ZF—ANF=HA—HEH)
Hui Kwok Wing (appointed on 19 June 2015) 6/6
HFEE (ZAR—F—FAFANA+NH)
Independent Non-executive Directors
BYEHITES
Chung Wai Man 6/6
EREX
Leung Wai Chuen 6/6
RER
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann 6/6
o EY
In addition to regular Board meetings, the chairman of the Board H“EEerFHesi =X ((EFE])IIE

(“Chairman”) also met with all of the independent non-executive
Directors without the presence of the executive Directors during the year.
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Under the code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, the non-executive
Directors should be appointed for a specific term.

Each of the executive Directors namely, Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu
and Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of two years
from 11 September 2014, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ written notice or payment in lieu to the other

party.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of
two years from 11 September 2014, which may be terminated by
not less than three months’ written notice or payment in lieu to the
other party.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of
two years from 19 June 2015, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ written notice or payment in lieu to the other

party.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy should be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment. By virtue of article 83 of the articles of association
of the Company, the Directors shall have the power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to
fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition to the existing
Board. Any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office until the first general meeting of members after
his appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting.
Any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

In compliance with the code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code,
every director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. Furthermore, pursuant to article 84 of the
articles of association of the Company, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being, (or, if
their number is not a multiple of three (3), the number nearest
to but not less than one third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement at an
annual general meeting at least once every three years. A retiring
Director shall be eligible for re-election and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting at which he retires.
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The Company has three independent non-executive Directors to
comply with Rule 5.05 of the GEM Listing Rules. Furthermore,
among the three independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Chung
and Mr. Leung have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 5.05(2) of the GEM Listing Rules. In accordance to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive Directors the written
confirmation of his/her independence. The Company, based on
such confirmation, considers Mr. Chung, Mr. Leung and Ms.
Yeung to be independent.

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles
of the chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. During the
year, the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu
and the office of the chief executive officer of the Company is
performed by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond. The code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code has been complied with.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to
executive Director and management of the Company with
department heads responsible for different aspects of the
business/functions, while reserving certain key matters in making
strategic decision for its approval. When the Board delegates
aspects of its management and administration functions to
management, it gives clear directions as to the powers of
management, in particular, with respect to the circumstances
where management need to report back and obtain prior approval
from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all
directors shall participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Company has arranged and/or introduced some Director’s training
courses and has provided monthly financial highlight, business
update of the Group and training materials for the Directors to
develop and explore their knowledge and skills.

During the year, all Directors have participated in continuous

professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills.
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The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering
the liabilities in respect of legal action against the Directors and
officers of the Company that may arise out in the corporate
activities which has been complied with the CG Code. The
insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

Board Committees

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
was established by the Board on 11 September 2014 with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the
GEM Listing Rules and code provision C.3.3 of the CG Code. The
latest terms of reference of the Audit Committee were revised
on 2 February 2016 and effective from 1 April 2016. The Audit
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Mr. Leung. The other members are Mr.
Chung and Ms. Yeung. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include the review of the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and the internal control systems of the Group.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the consolidated results of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2016 with the management
and is of the view that such results complied with the applicable
accounting standards, the requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules and other applicable legal requirements, and that adequate
disclosures had been made.
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Five Audit Committee meetings were held in addition to circulation B TEEEEARE  EREE @R AEELET
of written resolutions during the year. Details of the attendance of TR &% @ENERZE@ @ L FEXRNT
members of the Audit Committee meeting are as follows: BT

Members Attendance
RE HE=R
Leung Wai Chuen (Chairman) 5/5
RER(E/E)

Chung Wai Man 5/5
EREX

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann 5/5
GE G

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year:

reviewed the audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2015;

(a)

reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial statements for
the three months ended 30 June 2015, six months ended 30
September 2015 and nine months ended 31 December 2015;

(b)

reviewed the Group'’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems;

approved the remuneration and the appointment and the
terms of engagement of the external auditor; and

reviewed the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and the effectiveness of audit process in accordance with
applicable standards.

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September
2014 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG
Code. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Chung.
The other members are Mr. Leung and Ms. Yeung. The primary
duties of the Remuneration Committee are, amongst other things,
to review and determine the terms of remuneration packages,
bonuses and other compensation payable to the Directors and
senior management and to make recommendation to the Board on
the policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management.
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Three Remuneration Committee meetings were held during the
year to review the remuneration packages of all Directors and
employees of the Company. Details of the attendance of the
members of the Remuneration Committee meeting are as follows:
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MEEENEEZFH  eERFHEZE a3
HERNFBLT

Members Attendance
K8 HE=R
Chung Wai Man (Chairman) 3/3
BEX(FE)

Leung Wai Chuen 3/3
2R R

Yeung Mo Sheung Ann 3/3
HRE

The remuneration payable to the employees includes salaries and
allowances. The Group’s remuneration policies are formulated
based on the performance of individual employees and are
reviewed regularly. Subject to the Group’s profitability, the
Group may also provide a discretionary bonus to employees as an
incentive for their contribution to the Group. The primary goal of
the remuneration policy with regard to the remuneration package
of the executive Director is to enable the Group to retain and
motivate the executive Director by linking his compensation with
performance as measured against corporate objectives achieved.
The executive Director is entitled to the remuneration packages
including basic salaries and discretionary bonuses.

During the year, the remuneration package of the Directors were
reviewed and adjusted as follows:

The remuneration packages of Mr. Chung Wai Man, Mr. Leung
Wai Chuen and Ms. Yeung Mo Sheung Ann, the independent non-
executive Directors, have been adjusted upward to HK$15,000 per
month, with effect from 19 June 2015.

The remuneration package of Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu, the Chairman
and executive Director, have been adjusted upward to HK$50,000
per month, with effect from 1 January 2016.

The remuneration package of Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, the
chief executive officer and executive Director, have been adjusted
upward to HK$105,000 per month, with effect from 1 January
2016.

ERNEE 2 BEEHE KRR - NEEZ M
BERENEREEMRRETE - WEHmT - )R
BAKEZENEES - ARBERAIERES R
BISTEAESREAAEE BN AR - BREAH
TEEFFMEERRNTIZEN  RREAKE
AREFMEXE(ACERNEXBREE)H
0 DBRBERHBATES - ATESHHEE
BRERERFHE MBBEANFHAES

RAEE - ESHME RS LARNT ¢

BIUFRTEFTEEN L REREERER
Rz # MR EFEBES 1500087 0 8=
E—RFERATNARRERER -

FTERNTESTHSEE2HFMHR EARE
A50,00087T B2 —~"F—H— Eii)&

THRBH TN TEBFBRR L EZH R LR
£®HA1050008 T B E—"F—H—H
HE o

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR



30

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT &R E

The remuneration packages of the Directors were determined by
reference to their experience, duties and responsibilities in the
Company and the prevailing market rate.

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by all shareholders by way of written
resolution on 11 September 2014. The terms of the Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 23 of
the GEM Listing Rules. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain the best available personnel, to provide
additional incentive to employees (full-time and part-time),
directors, consultants, advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers,
agents, customers, business partners or service providers of the
Group (the “Eligible Participant”) and to promote the success of
the business of the Group.

The Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject
to the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to the Eligible
Participant to subscribe for the shares of the Company.

The Company believes that by offering the Eligible Participants a
shareholding stake in the Company, the interests of the Eligible
Participants and the Company become aligning and thereby the
Eligible Participants have additional incentives to improve the
Company’s performance.

The Board is empowered under the Company’s articles of
association to appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual
vacancy on or, as an additional member of the Board. Qualified
candidates will be proposed to the Board for consideration and
the selection criteria are mainly based on the assessment of their
professional qualifications and experience. The Board selects
and recommends candidates for directorship to the shareholders
having regards to the balance of skills and experience appropriate
to the Group’s business.
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Two Nomination Committee meetings were held during the year.
Details of the attendance of the members of the Nomination
Committee meeting are as follows:
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ZHEERNFEBWT:

SENE

Members Attendance
RE HER
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (Chairman) 2/2
BRI (EE)

Leung Wai Chuen 2/2
RER

Chung Wai Man 2/2
EEX

The nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination ZAAGTWEZEZES([IEZEZEE )R — g
Committee”) was established by the Board on 11 September 2014 @& h B+ —BHHREES MK - I%ﬁem%%ﬂé?
with written terms of reference, which were revised on 19 June Bl E 2= Eﬂfﬂﬁéﬁkl (RZZE—ARF A+ IH

2015, in compliance with the CG Code. The Nomination
Committee currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and is chaired by Ms. Yeung. The other members are
Mr. Chung and Mr. Leung. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee are mainly responsible for making recommendations to
the Board on appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company adopted a board diversity policy and aims to set the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Company seeks
to achieve Board diversity through the consideration of a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualification, skills,
knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy,
as appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity
policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that
may be required, and recommend any such revisions to the Board
for consideration and approval.
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EO Compliance Committee

The Electricity Ordinance (“EQ") compliance committee of the
Company (the "EO Compliance Committee”) was established by
the Board on 11 September 2014. The EO Compliance Committee
currently comprises two executive Directors and one independent
non-executive Director and is chaired by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond. The other members are Mr. Hui Kwok Wing and Mr.
Chung. The primary duties of the EO Compliance Committee
are to oversee and monitor the Group’s compliance of EO and
other relevant regulations through regular meetings and special
meetings.

Four EO Compliance Committee meetings were held during
the year to oversee and monitor the Group’s compliance of EO
and other relevant regulations. Details of the attendance of
the members of the EO Compliance Committee meeting are as
follows:
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Members Attendance
RE HE =
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (Chairman) 4/4
FTESR (F/E)

Chou Hing Yan Stephen (resigned on 1 March 2016) 4/4
MEBC(R=ZF—NF=H—HEFHT)

Chung Wai Man 4/4
#EEX

Hui Kwok Wing (appointed on 1 March 2016) N/A
R (ZERZFE—NF=H—H) A5 F
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Accountability and Audit

All Directors acknowledges their responsibility to prepare the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for each financial
year to give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Group and of its financial performance and cash flows for that
financial year. In preparing the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2016, the Board has selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable
and prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going
concern basis. The Directors are responsible for taking all
reasonable and necessary steps to safeguard the assets of the
Group and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.
The statement of auditor about their reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report. The Directors continue to adopt the
going concern approach in preparing the consolidated financial
statements and are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The remuneration paid or payable to the Company’ auditor, BDO
Limited, in respect of their audit services and non-auditing services
for the year ended 31 March 2016 amounted to HK$820,000 and
HK$180,000 respectively.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness
of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
This responsibility is primarily fulfilled on its behalf by the Audit
Committee and the latest terms of reference (including risk
management) of the Audit Committee were revised on 2 February
2016 and effective from 1 April 2016. The Company has reviewed
the effectiveness of the system of risk management and internal
control of the Group, covering all material controls, including
financial and operation for the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Investors and Shareholders Relations

The Company values communication with the shareholders
and investors of the Company. The Company uses two-way
communication channels to account to shareholders and investors
for the performance of the Company. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders or investors are welcomed, and enquiries from
shareholders may be put to the Board through the following
channels to the executive Director:

1. By mail to the Company’s principal place of business at 26th
Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong; or

2. By email at investor@elighting.asia.

The Company uses a number of formal communications channel
to account to shareholders and investors for the performance
of the Company. These include (i) the publication of quarterly,
interim and annual reports; (ii) the annual general meeting or
extraordinary general meeting providing a forum for shareholders
to raise comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii)
updated the key information of the Group available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company; (iv) the
Company’s website offering communication channel between
the Company and its shareholders and investors; and (v) the
Company's share registrars in Hong Kong serving the shareholders
in respect of all share registration matters.

The Company aims to provide its shareholders and investors with
high standards of disclosure and financial transparency. The Board
is committed to provide clear, detailed, timely manner and on a
regular basis information of the Group to shareholders through
the publication of quarterly, interim and annual reports and/or
dispatching circulars, notices, and other announcements.

The Company strives to take into consideration its shareholders’
views and inputs, and address shareholders’ concerns.
Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual general
meeting for which at least 20 clear business days’ notice shall be
given. The chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, the Directors are available to
answer shareholders’ questions on the Group’s businesses at the
meeting. To comply with code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code,
the management will ensure the external auditor to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of
the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the
accounting policies and auditor independence.
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All shareholders have statutory rights to call for extraordinary
general meetings and put forward agenda items for consideration
by shareholders. According to article 58 of the articles of
association of the Company, any one or more members holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty
one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for
election as a director of the Company at a general meeting, he/
she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) at the Company’s
head office located at 26th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Notice shall:

(i) include the personal information of the Candidate as required
by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules; and

(i) be signed by the shareholder concerned and signed by the

Candidate indicating his/her willingness.

The period for lodgment of the Notice shall commence on the day
after the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no
later than seven days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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In order to ensure the Company’s shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate
as a director of the Company without adjourning the general
meeting, shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice as
early as practicable preferably at least 15 business days prior to the
date of the general meeting appointed for such election.

In order to promote effective communication, the Company also
maintains website (www.elighting.asia) which includes the latest
information relating to the Group and its businesses.

Mr. Lam has been appointed as the company secretary of the
Company on 27 June 2014. During the year, Mr. Lam has
taken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
accordance with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2016.

Principal Place of Business in Hong Kong

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands and its principal place of business in Hong Kong is
26th Floor, Tiffan Tower, 199 Wanchai Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

Principal Activities

The Company’s principal activity is investment holding while the
Group is principally engaged in retail chain business in lighting,
designer label furniture and household products in Hong Kong
and wholesale of tableware and giftware worldwide. The principal
activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company
are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Compliance with Relevant Law and Regulations
During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of
the Group.

Corporate Governance

The Company maintains a high standard of corporate governance
practices. Details of the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 23 to 36. The Directors believe the long term financial
performance as opposed to short term rewards is a corporate
governance objective. The Board would not take undue risks to
make short term gains at the expense of the long term objectives.

Business Review

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the Chairman’s Statement on pages 5 to 6, CEQ’s
Statement on pages 7 to 8 and Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 9 to 17 of this Annual Report.

Results and Dividend

The results of the Group for the financial year ended 31 March
2016 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 49 to 119.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2016.
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Share Capital

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Equity-Linked Agreements

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
of this report and “Other Financial Liabilities” in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked agreement was
entered into by the Company during the year.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements respectively.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 March 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately
HK$68,867,000.

Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company recognises that our employees, customers and
business partners (including suppliers and contractors) are key
stakeholders to the Company’s success. We strive to achieve
corporate sustainability through engaging our employees,
providing quality products and services to our customers,
collaborating with business partners to deliver quality sustainable
products and services and supporting our community.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the top five customers together accounted for
approximately 18.0% of the Group’s revenue and the Group’s
largest customer accounted for approximately 14.6% of the
Group’s revenue.

During the year, the top five suppliers together accounted for
approximately 60.5% of the Group’s purchases and the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 32% of the Group’s
purchases.

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers.
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Directors
During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the
Directors were:

Hue Kwok Chiu

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond

Hui Kwok Wing (appointed on 19 June 2015)

Chou Hing Yan Stephen (resigned on 1 March 2016)

Chung Wai Man
Leung Wai Chuen
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann

By virtue of article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu and Mr.
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond, will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company.

Mr. Chou Hing Ying Stephen resigned as executive Director on 1
March 2016. Mr. Chou Hing Ying Stephen confirmed that they
have no disagreement with the Board and nothing relating to the
affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention of
the shareholders of the Company.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors, namely Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu and
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a service agreement with the Company
for an initial fixed term of two years from 11 September 2014,
which may be terminated by not less than three months’ written
notice or payment in lieu to the other party.

Mr. Hui Kwok Wing, the executive Director, has entered into a
service agreement with the Company for an initial fixed term of
two years from 19 June 2015, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ written notice or payment in lieu to the other

party.

None of the Directors (including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting) has a service contract
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management

The biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 18 to 22.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE=g &

5
RAFEREEHAFHRA  EFA

ATEI S
ATEISR
HBER(ZER-F—AFNATNA)
MBI (R=—F—NF=H—HFF)

BREX
RER
RS o

RIFSRAAIFEAG » FFEISI T A MFFEIREAE
HERE AN ERNARBRRBEFAES
FARBREREL -

MEBLCHREN2016F3 A1 BHEARRRNITE
E-NMELCLENRER  REHESSUEER
D MEFRAEBARR ZEEERFBAAT
PR EE o

ESHNRBEL
FEHUTESEGrESIEERFFERTLE) B
FATESHRARBITLRB WE - V1FH=
T-NEAA+—AEFRERE - EE2ER—
FTAR—HTEOTPR=ZEAEmAMNLNKRE
HMETARIERIE -

HITEFRFERACERARRG L — 7R %
FoNTHR T -AFAATNLBRF R
F-EEEA-—FTRAZ—HELTIPIR=ZEAZ
EBARMBNE TARIERILE

MEE=(EEHXEERRAF S LBEE
ENER)FTUTTHARER —FRKIEME
AXMEMEEE CEERERIN RBAEA

EENRESNREBAEBZERE

EENRREEBABZBEHNEI8E22E

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR

39



40

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS ES=& k%

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures of the Company or any
Associated Corporations

As at 31 March 2016, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company (the “Chief
Executive”) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")), as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Required Standard of Dealings were as
follows:

ESEREFRITHRAERA QB HEM
MRECEE ARG - HER D REREE
PR AR

RIE-—RFZA=1+—H ARAEERIZ
TTBAB(TEEBITRAR ) RAR R SEHR
B (EERERMBPEGERD([FHRBEE )
SEXVER) MRy - HERD RERITETHEA AR
BEFLMBMERAEIS2EREMETF 2 ELM
MR - HIRBER Z B TREEMNEG A LD E
LR SORR T

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
®E BoRkEENE HEHEHE REMAO B DL
Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond Interest in controlling corporation 210,000,000 50.05%
AR 58 St A Ry EE S (Note 1)
(M)
Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu Interest in controlling corporation 45,000,000 10.72%
SRS e RPEE R (Note 2)
(M$5E2)
Notes: P 5E
(1) These shares are held by Time Prestige Ventures Limited, a company (1) ZZ{p M Time Prestige Ventures Limited (— &
wholly-owned by Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond. HERe A2 BIEENRAT)ES -
(2)  These shares are held by Star Adventure Holdings Limited, a company  (2) %2 B% 7 i Star Adventure Holdings Limited (— &
wholly-owned by Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu. el = 7 = O/NGIDE =T
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, none of the FREXPIBWENUIN RZTE-REF=ZA=+—

Directors or the Chief Executive had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any associated corporation as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Required
Standard of Dealings.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ FERRREMATRAERATRD R
Interests and Short Positions in the Shares and #HEKRGDHNERZE R AE

Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 March 2016, to the best of the knowledge of the
Directors and the Chief Executive and based on the public records
filed on the website of the Stock Exchange and records kept by
the Company, the interests and short positions of the persons or
corporations (other than the Directors and the Chief Executive) in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO were as

RZF—RF=ZA=1+—H BEFRIETH
ABFA - WX AEEMIARERN RARE
PIFERLE  THALHEB(EZEREETH
ABRRINRAR B I KARBE IR0 A BRI
&5 R HI B IRDIFE 336 165 E M 7 2 B iMH
RCERZ R SORRINT ¢

follows:
Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name Capacity/Nature of interests securities shareholding
HE BoRERME HH5HE IREBA B L
Time Prestige Ventures Limited Beneficial Owner 210,000,000 50.05%
BE=EAA
Star Adventure Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 45,000,000 10.72%
EmBEAA
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying (Note 1) Interest of spouse 45,000,000 10.72%
REB AL (FFEET) B
Zhang Yong Fang (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 31,439,286 7.49%
Zhang Yong Fang (Fff&E2) EmEaA
Notes: BitsE

(1) Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is the spouse of Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu. Under the SFO, (1) REERZTATHLTAENER - RIEESH K
Ms. Ng Hiu Ying is deemed to be interested in the same number of BB - RBBAZTHEARTREICERHBR
shares in which Mr. Hue Kwok Chiu is interested. mAEREE RO B ER

(2) The 31,439,286 shares that Zhang Yong Fang are interested in  (2)
represent the underlining shares of the Company of the aggregate
principal amount of convertible bonds of HK$9,620,245 issued by the
Company on 26 February 2016 and HK$12,387,255 to be issued by B R R B & B R IT A& #%812,387,2558 0]
the Company upon the fulfillment of the profit guarantee as set out BREF(ERAARBRBHA-_T—AFAAT=
in the announcements dated 13 May 2015, 21 May 2015 and 4 June A ZE—AFRAAZ+—HERZZE—HFA
2015 of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.7 per share. MHEMAS)BEERGS (LBREARER0.7ET) °

Zhang Yong Fang# & 31,439,286 1% 5 # 2= ¥5 42
STARRBIRZE—R"EZAZ+BETELS
#%09,620,24578 7T AJ A Il 5 RN R B R E

BREXPIBBENIN R REF=ZA=1—
B BMEATIZE(EZREIETRABKIN
RARB R AR RO P A EAERIAR
RBEARRBREES KRB ERIIEIB6HERE
m#EF 2 ERMA -

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2016, there was no person
or corporation (other than the Directors and the Chief Executives)
who had any interests or short positions in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to attract and retain
the best available personnel, to provide additional incentive
to employees (full-time and part-time), directors, consultants,
advisers, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers,
business partners or service providers of the Group (the “Eligible
Participant”) and to promote the success of the business of the
Group.

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
11 September 2014 whereby the Board are authorised, at their
absolute discretion and subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, to grant options to the Eligible Participant to subscribe for
the shares of the Company. The Share Option Scheme will be valid
and effective for a period of ten years commencing from the date
of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue upon the
date of Listing, being 40,000,000 shares (or such numbers of
shares as shall result from a subdivision or a consolidation of
such 40,000,000 shares from time to time) (the “Scheme Limit").
Subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting, the Board
may (i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general meeting;
and/or (ii) grant options beyond the Share Option Scheme Limit to
eligible participants specifically identified by the Board.

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. No options shall be granted under any schemes
of the Company (including the Share Option Scheme) if this will
result in the limit being exceeded.

The total number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes of the Company to each eligible participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue. Any
further grant of options is subject to shareholders’ approval in
general meeting with such eligible participant and his associates
abstaining from voting.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may
determine which shall not exceed 10 years from the date of grant
subject to the provisions of early termination thereof.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven
days inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The
amount payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on
acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the participants may
subscribe for the shares of the Company on exercise of an option
at the price determined by the Board provided that it shall be at
least the highest of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average of the closing prices
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the share.

As at 31 March 2016, the total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 shares, representing
9.53% of the issued shares of the Company. Since the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme, no share option has been granted by the
Company.

Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors and the Chief
Executives (including their spouses and children under 18 years
of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares, or
underlying shares, or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Pre-emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company'’s Listed securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s securities during the year.
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Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the public float required by the GEM Listing Rules.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transactions,
Arrangements and Contracts that are
Significant in relation to the Company’s
Business

Save as otherwise disclosed, no transactions, arrangements and
contracts of significance in relation to the Group’'s business
to which the Company, its holding companies, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director or the Director’s
connected party had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

Permitted Indemnity Provision

The Company’s Articles provides that every director, is entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto
provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any matter in
respect of fraud or dishonesty which may attach to the director.

The Company has taken out and maintained directors’ liability
insurance throughout the year, which provides appropriate cover
for the directors.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
was entered into or existed during the year.

Deed of non-competition

The controlling shareholders, namely Mr. Hui Kwok Keung
Raymond and the company through which he holds equity
interests in the Company, namely, Time Prestige Ventures Limited,
have entered into a deed of non-competition with the Company
on 11 September 2014. The details of the deed of non-competition
have been disclosed in the Prospectus.

The controlling shareholders have confirmed the Company that
they had complied with the non-competition undertakings during
the year. The Board (including the independent non-executive
Directors) has reviewed and confirmed the compliance with the
non-competition undertakings by the controlling shareholders.
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Competing Interests

As at 31 March 2016, none of the Directors, the substantial
shareholders of the Company and their respective close associates
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

Connected Transactions
Save as otherwise disclosed, there were no significant connected
transactions entered into by the Group for the year.

Retirement Benefits Plans

Particulars of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31
March 2016 are set out in note 4(I)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors were independent during the
year.

Compliance Adviser’s Interests

As at 31 March 2016, neither Ample Capital Limited, the
compliance adviser of the Company, nor any of its Directors,
employees or close associates had any interests in the securities
of the Company or any other companies of the Group (including
options or rights to subscribe for such securities) pursuant to Rule
6A.32 of GEM Listing Rules.

Environmental Issues

The Company is committed to the sustainable development of
the environment and our society. The Group has endeavoured
to comply with laws and regulations regarding environmental
protection and adopted effective environmental policies to ensure
its projects meet the required standards and ethics in respect of
environmental protection.

The Group aim to position ourselves to capture the flourishing
LED market, by monitoring the latest development of policies for
LED products and providing customers with more eco-friendly
and cost-effective LED products. The Group have also assembled
the product portfolio in order that the majority of the lighting
appliance products to be LED compatible, and the Group have
designated several of existing retail shops as LED specialty stores
which primarily showcase LED lighting appliance products.
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Moreover, the Group have participating in the “Fluorescent Lamp
Recycling Programme”, which provides households with free
collection and treatment for all used mercury-containing lamps
to reduce the environmental risk from improper disposal of these
lamps and recover resources.

Event after the Reporting Period

Saved as otherwise disclosed, the Group does not have any
material subsequent event after the reporting period and up to the
date of this report.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group is set out in the financial summary on page 120 of this
annual report.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2016 have been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company is
to be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

By Order of the Board

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited
Hue Kwok Chiu
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Tel

: +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239

B BN R S

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong
Y EEE - +852 2218 8288 HFBETFEEF1115E
{8 : +852 2815 2239 KLHI2518

www.bdo.com.hk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
E Lighting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of E Lighting
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 49 to 119, which comprise the consolidated
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2016, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Directors’ responsibility for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2016 and
of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Chow Tak Sing, Peter

Practising Certificate Number P04659

Hong Kong,
22 June 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSlVE |NCOME
n‘/—.l_\ %ﬁ”& %%

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—<"F=A=+—HLFE

2016 2015
—NE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Revenue == 7 106,488 80,416
Cost of sales SHERK AN (57,089) (35,370)
Gross profit EF 49,399 45,046
Other income and gain = NS 8 19,330 107
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEEX (41,332) (36,824)
Administrative and other expenses THEEMES (21,576) (20,570)
Finance costs B 7 K AR 9 (10) =
Profit/(Loss) before tax BRE AR A, (EBE) 9 5,811 (12,241)
Income tax expense FriS %t 12 (154) (456)
Profit/(Loss) and total comprehensive 22 BB A FE(GE A F],
income for the year attributable to (BB REmEkzE Az
the owners of the Company 5,657 (12,697)
Earnings/(Loss) per share BREF,(&EE) 13
— Basic (HK cents) — AR (L) 1.38 (3.61
— Diluted (HK cents) —BE OB 0.49 (3.6

ERAKEZERARAT —TNFFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

ra BRI R R

As at 31 March 2016 R=ZF—~"F=A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—REF =—hF
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
M F&T TET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment e =Y 15 2,766 3,482
Intangible assets B EE 16 6,701 =
Goodwill RS 17 36,906 -
Rental deposits HEZS 19 4,665 4,935
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBE B 23 320 295
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 51,358 8,712
Current assets ﬁ@hﬁE
Inventories TE 18 19,657 22,361
Trade and other receivables P 2T % L P MR IR 19 8,759 6,493
Tax recoverable A Uz O] 7 18 - 1,101
Cash and bank balances NG NIRRT 15,991 22,153
Total current assets MEBEERE 44,407 52,108
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables e 3 IE&HTHJFEHMIE 20 10,182 6,781
Amount due to a controlling shareholder &t — 44 3% B B 38 F0 08 21 - 1,242
Other financial liabilities HitsmasE 22 5,034 -
Current tax liabilities ENEARIE & & 422 59
Total current liabilities mENREA%E 15,638 8,082
Net current assets REBEEFE 28,769 44,026
Total assets less current liabilities EELZLERABERE 80,127 52,738
Non-current liabilities ERBEMS
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIE B F 23 1,124 -
Other financial liabilities HitsmasE 22 248 -
Total non-current liabilities IR BaELEsE 1,372 -
NET ASSETS EEFE 78,755 52,738
EQUITY s
Share capital R% 72 24 4,196 4,000
Reserves HiE 74,559 48,738
TOTAL EQUITY fERAEE 78,755 52,738

On behalf of the Board
RERESE

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (ZFEl3#)

Director %

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEREEDE

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—<"F=A=+—HLFE

Convertible
bonds
Share Share Other equity  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve  earnings equity
TRRES
Bax  RGEE HtRE BERE  REEN  EReH
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
fizE TiERn TR T TEL THERL T
1 April 2014 —Z-WFEWMA—AH 2 = = = 21,099 21,101
Issue of shares during SRR
reorganisation HRRLD 24(a) *_ _ _ _ _ *_
Elimination of share capital Eailisin
upon reorganisation RA @) - 2 - - =
Issue of shares upon placing RERERTHRN 24(h) 1,000 49,000 - - - 50,000
Issue of shares by capitalisation R EERERLE
of share premium account BITRIRG 24(c) 3,000 (3,000) - - - -
Expenses incurred in RERE
connection with the issue Bkl
of shares upon placing FEERNRR - (5,666) - - - (5,666)
Loss and total comprehensive income  £EERR2E
for the year Wi ias = = = - (12,697)  (12,697)
As at 31 March 2015 RZE-RF=RA=1-H 4,000 40,334 2 - 8,402 52,738
Issue of convertible bonds BITARE 22 - - - 20,039 - 20,039
Issue of shares upon conversion RERTARESE
of convertible bonds BIRO 24(d) 196 15,710 - (15,585) - 321
Profit and total comprehensive FERMEZEYWE
income for the year ek - - - - 5,657 5,657
As at 31 March 2016 HE-AEZAZt-A 419 56,044 2 4454 14059 78755

*

Represents amount less than HK$1,000

Note:

The other reserve of the Group represents the difference between the
nominal value of shares issued by the Company and the aggregate nominal
value of the issued share capital of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a

*  RINVER1,0008 TR &5
M aE -
AEBEMEEEAARNEETRMABEREN -

—OFENANBERNEESAMBBHEAREET
BRAEEARZFHER -

group reorganisation which became effective on 8 September 2014.

ERAKEZERARAT —TNFFER
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Il‘/__]—\ Iﬁf@/}lb%%‘%

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ=—Z—~E=A=+—HILEE

2016 2015
—AE —hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REKLEETHNRERE
Profit/(Loss) before tax BEERDER(E1E) 5,811 (12,241)
Adjustments for: ?ﬁTﬁ'JXIﬁf’Etﬂﬁﬂﬁ :
Fair value gain on financial liabilities at fair ~ FBERER A FETENEE
value through profit or loss BB AFEEH K (19,085) =
Depreciation of property, plant and Mz -~ BE R
equipment REHITE 1,767 1,428
Amortisation of intangible assets A 1,340 -
Provision for obsolete inventories REFEBE 1,209 -
Interest income F B U A (46) (53)
Finance costs BTG A 10 -
Operating cash flows before working EEESEHAIZ
capital changes REBEESR (8,994) (10,866)
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories TFERA,/ () 1,619 (4,845)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and JiE U S I8 K EoAth fE U 5R08
other receivables A (3ghn) 1,313 (4,430)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and FE < 3R T8 K% H b E A~ FRE
other payables @,/ Cr ) 814 (498)
Cash used in operations KEFTANES (5.248) (20,639)
Income tax refund/(paid) 2RE () FEH 924 (1,337)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHMARES FHE (4,324) (21,976)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHABRERE
Decrease/(Increase) in time deposit with REHRR=MEAU LK
original maturity over three months EEEZRAL,/ (3 m) 1,000 (1,000)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB - HE &EE (970) (2,910)
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition of RULEEI B A Bl E £ HY
subsidiaries REMANFRE 328 =
Net cash from/(used in) investing activities REFEE, (FTA)MNBELFHE 358 (3,910)

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS GReBReREsR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E-RE T —hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT THT
Cash flows from financing activities BMEZEFEEERE
Decrease in amount due to a controlling S — B ¥R AR AR BR SR IR R
shareholder (1,242) (1,883)
Share issue expenses BT 2 - (5,218)
Proceeds from issue of shares BTN Z FT{S 3kIE - 50,000
Interest received B E 46 53
Net cash (used in)/from financing BEES(FFH) s
activities HEFE (1,196) 42,952
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRBESEBEYHCRD)
cash equivalents HEE (5,162) 17,066
Cash and cash equivalents at FOzEER
beginning of year REEEY 21,153 4,087
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year £ARZRERBELZEEY 15,991 21,153
Analysis of the balances of cash RERRLEEY
and cash equivalents: AT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTA 84 15,991 22,153
Less: Time deposit with original maturity B REERAR =8 A 8
over three months TEHRfF X - (1,000)
15,991 21,153

EREKEERBRAT T FFHk 53
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ_=%

1.

BB ERAR M EE

—~FZA=t-HLEFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND THE
REORGANISATION EXERCISE AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
with limited liability on 29 November 2013 under the Companies
Law. Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company's registered office
and principal place of business are disclosed in the Corporate

Information section of this annual report.

The Company'’s issued shares have been listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market (“GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) since 29 September 2014 (the
“Listing”).

The directors consider the Company’s parent and ultimate parent
is Time Prestige Venture Limited, a company incorporated in British
Virgin Islands (“BVI").

The Group’s principal activity is engaged in the retail chain
business of lighting, designer label furniture and household
products in Hong Kong and wholesale and retail sales of tableware
and giftware. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pursuant to a reorganisation scheme to rationalise the
structure of the Group in the preparation for the Listing (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company of
the companies now comprising the Group on 8 September 2014.

Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the section
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure”
of the prospectus of the Company dated 22 September 2014
(“Prospectus”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

CORPORATE INFORMATION AND THE
REORGANISATION EXERCISE AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION (continued)

The Company and its subsidiaries have been under common
control of Mr. Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (the “Controlling
Shareholder”) before and after the Reorganisation, there was
a continuation of the risks and benefits to the Controlling
Shareholder and, therefore, the Reorganisation is considered
to be a restructuring of entities and business under common
control. Before and after the Reorganisation, there is also no
change in management of the Group and ultimate owners of the
Group remain the same. Accordingly, the comparable figures of
consolidated financial statements as set out in this report for the
year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared by adopting the
merger accounting principles. The consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statements of changes in
equity and the consolidated statements of cash flows of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2015 include the results and cash
flows of all companies now comprising the Group, as if the current
structure had been in existence throughout the period of 2015,
or since their respective dates of acquisition or incorporation,
where there is a shorter period. The consolidated statements of
financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2015 have been
prepared to present the financial position of the Group as if the
current structure had been in existence at these dates or since their
respective dates of acquisition or incorporation, whichever is the
shorter period.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2010-2012

Cycle
HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2011-2013
Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 19 (2011)

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle and
2011-2013 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to a number of standards where
they are currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS 16
Property, Plant and Equipment to clarify how the gross carrying
amount and accumulated depreciation are treated where an entity
uses the revaluation model. The carrying amount of the asset is
restated to revalued amount. The accumulated depreciation may
be eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset.
Alternatively, the gross carrying amount may be adjusted in a
manner consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount
of the asset and the accumulated depreciation is adjusted to
equal the difference between the gross carrying amount and
the carrying amount after taking into account accumulated
impairment losses.

The adoption of the amendments to HKAS16 has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group did not make any
revaluation of its property, plant and equipment.

Amendments to HKAS 19 (2011) — Defined
Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

The amendments permit contributions that are independent of the
number of years of service to be recognised as a reduction in the
service cost in the period in which the service is rendered instead
of allocating the contributions to periods of service.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on these financial
statements as the Group has no defined benefit plans.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (continued

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group's financial statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements 2012-2014

Cycle!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative’

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable Methods
of Depreciation and Amortisation'

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements'

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments?

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS12 and HKAS 28

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception’

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
HKFRS 16 Leases®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2016

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

Annual Improvements 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual improvements process
make small, non-urgent changes to a number of standards where
they are currently unclear.

Amendments to HKAS 1 - Disclosure Initiative
The amendments are designed to encourage entities to use
judgement in the application of HKAS 1 when considering the
layout and content of their financial statements.

An entity’s share of other comprehensive income from equity
accounted interests in associates and joint ventures will be split
between those items that will and will not be reclassified to profit
or loss, and presented in aggregate as a single line item within
those two groups.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38

- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a revenue-based
depreciation method for items of property, plant and equipment.
The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable presumption
that amortisation based on revenue is not appropriate for
intangible assets. This presumption can be rebutted if either the
intangible asset is expressed as a measure of revenue or revenue
and the consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

Amendments to HKAS 27 - Equity Method in
Separate Financial Statements

The amendments allow an entity to apply the equity method in
accounting for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates in its separate financial statements.

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows (the business model test) and
that have contractual terms that give rise to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding (the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are
generally measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that
meet the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income if the objective
of the entity’s business model is both to hold and collect the
contractual cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Entities
may make an irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading at fair value
through other comprehensive income. All other debt and equity
instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (ontinued

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model for all
financial assets not measured at fair value through profit or loss
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general
hedge accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of change in fair value
attributable to change in credit risk of the liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income unless that would create or
enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains the
requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Amendments to HKFRS10, HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 28 - Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception

The amendments clarify that the exemption from preparing
consolidated financial statements for an intermediate parent
entity is available to a subsidiary of an investment entity (including
investment entities that account for their subsidiaries at fair value
rather than consolidating them). An investment entity parent
will consolidate a subsidiary only when the subsidiary is not itself
an investment entity and the subsidiary’s main purpose is to
provide services that relate to the investment entity’s investment
activities. A non-investment entity applying the equity method to
an associate or joint venture that is an investment entity may retain
the fair value measurements that associate or joint venture used
for its subsidiaries. An investment entity that prepares financial
statements in which all its subsidiaries are measured at fair value
through profit or loss should provide the disclosures related to
investment entities as required by HKFRS 12.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS 15
supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and related
interpretations.

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each performance
obligation

Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance obligation is

satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue related
topics that may change the current approach taken under HKFRS.
The standard also significantly enhances the qualitative and
quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

HKFRS 16 — Leases

The new standard specifies how an entity to recognise, measure,
present and disclose leases. HKFRS 16 requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease item is 12
months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors
continue to classify leases as operating or finance with HKFRS 16's
approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its
predecessor HKAS 17.

The Group has already commenced an assessment of the impact
of adopting the above standards and amendments to existing
standards to the Group. The Group is not yet in a position to state
whether these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’'s accounting policies and financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R & i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RNEBUHERELED ([ FBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (continued) 7& &%EEJJ)

The amended GEM Board Listing Rules in relation to the
presentation and disclosures in financial statements, including the
amendments with reference to the new Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622 (the New Ordinance), was first applied to the Company
in this financial year.

The directors consider that there is no impact on the Group’s
financial position or performance. However, the amendments
to GEM Listing Rules have impacts on the presentation and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “GEM Listings Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain financial

instruments which are measured at fair value.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company. These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group”).
Inter-company transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of impairment on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the dates of acquisition or up to the dates of
disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted for using the
acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred,
liabilities incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
are principally measured at acquisition-date fair value.

The Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gains
or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The Group may elect,
on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership interests
in the subsidiary either at fair value or at the proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another measurement
basis is required by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are
expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity instruments in
which case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent adjustments
to consideration are recognised against goodwill only to the
extent that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at the acquisition date.
All other subsequent adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result
in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative
interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests is adjusted and the fair
value of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on
disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary are accounted
for in the same manner as would be required if the relevant assets
or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling
interests that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiary is the amount of those interests at initial recognition
plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able to
exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all three
of the following elements are present: power over the investee,
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the investee, and the
ability to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree over the fair value of identifiable assets and
liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities exceed
the aggregate of the fair value of consideration paid, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree, the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the
acquisition date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition. A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable
group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups
of assets. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, by comparing its
carrying amount with its recoverable amount (see note 4(g)), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the
carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis
of the carrying amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the individual asset’s
carrying amount to below its fair value less cost of disposal (if
measurable) or its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or
loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its present working condition and location
for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after the asset has
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance and
overhaul costs, is charged to profit or loss in the year in which it
is incurred. In situations where it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the subsequent expenditure will flow to
the Group and the cost can be measured reliably, the expenditure
is capitalised as an additional cost of the asset.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write off
their cost net of expected residual value over their estimated useful
lives on a straight-line basis. The useful lives, residual value and
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The useful lives are as follows:
Leasehold improvements 4 years or over the lease

terms, whichever is shorter
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable amount
if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised as assets at
their fair value or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding lease commitment is shown as a
liability. Lease payments are analysed between capital and interest.
The interest element is charged to profit or loss over the period
of the lease and is calculated so that it represents a constant
proportion of the lease liability. The capital element reduces the
balance owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an integrated
part of the total rental expense, over the term of the lease.

(i) Acquired intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognised
at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequently, intangible assets with finite useful lives
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation is provided on a straight-line basis over their
useful lives as follows. Intangible assets with indefinite useful
lives are carried at cost less any accumulated impairment
losses. The amortisation expense is recognised in profit or
loss and included in administrative expenses.

Customers relationship 5 years
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(ii) Impairment

Intangible assets with finite lives are tested for impairment
when there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, irrespective of whether there is any indication
that they may be impaired. Intangible assets are tested for
impairment by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts (see note 4(g)).

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount; however, the carrying amount should
not be increased above the lower of its recoverable amount
and the carrying amount that would have resulted had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. All reversal are recognised in the income statement
immediately.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, intangible
assets and investments in subsidiaries to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss or an impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or
may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to be
less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised as an expense immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as an income immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows expected
to be derived from the asset or cash generating unit (see note
4(c)), discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(i) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial recognition,
depending on the purpose for which the asset was acquired.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. A regular
way purchase or sale is a purchase or sale of financial assets
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the asset
within the time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

4., ERETHERm

iR EEHEE AL - MIEERAEKRS
EHEFTROMEFTIRE SR - EXRIE
RENRAENSBEATFZREELARED
HRREBRNEL T REEENREE -
R E A REER T AN RER AU o

ERABEDREEMSEEESRCELSE
I (AMFEM))EEZ B ARASREE
T RERT RS EEREEZRITH ST
EARBEENRSELEMBRERR 2
MR BA R BRI o

TFRTRRATER - BRI R A 23
FEMETNREEER - RABEMER
FBACKR - B AR B FEXER AR
EBIRBMRMTBOEMAKAR » A E
STHOARTE - JEERFEERAEXRFARESD
MEET S ERETTIHE B EAEETRA

(i) EMEE
REER T B EEN YL HERE
HEeMEEDH - MAFERERD
EZeBMEENSERTFEFNE M
FEEMESREENTIRAFENE
BemAEAEERRGLEZRIMAG
B-R-—RECBERLEZEeRE
ERRXZHEERER LK ILTHER - 1t
—RECBEILEZEREETR
BHBERHE  HEFHRERRT
% 35 01 K18 B 3 3R 7] 32 2 B (R A A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise principally through the provision of
goods and services to customers (trade debtors), and also
incorporate other types of contractual monetary asset.
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting period,
whether there is any objective evidence that financial asset
is impaired. Financial asset is impaired if there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
and that event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

3 significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

3 a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

3 granting concession to a debtor because of debtor’s
financial difficulty; or

o it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

For loans and receivables

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when
there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of financial asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When any part of financial asset
is determined as uncollectible, it is written off against the
allowance account for the relevant financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (continued)
For loans and receivables (continued)

An impairment loss is reversed in subsequent periods when
an increase in the asset’s recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was
recognised, subject to a restriction that the carrying amount
of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities depending on the
purpose for which the liabilities were incurred. Financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
measured at fair value and financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable cost incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in profit or loss.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives,
the entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial
liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the embedded derivative
is prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(continued)

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or
significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that would
otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities
are part of a group of financial liabilities which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management strategy;
or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are measured at fair value, with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they arise.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables and amount due to a controlling shareholder
are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is recognised in profit

or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the

amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that contain both
the liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into their respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange
of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a
fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments is
classified as an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Convertible bonds (continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible debts. The difference
between fair valve of the convertible bonds and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the loan notes
into equity, is included in equity (convertible bonds equity
reserve) when the convertible bonds are issued for cash.
When the convertible bonds are issued as consideration for
a business combination, the liability component and equity
component are initially recognised at fair value respectively.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. The equity component,
represented by the option to convert the liability component
into ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in
convertible bonds equity reserve until the embedded option
is exercised (in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share capital and
share premium). Where the option remains unexercised at
the expiry dates, the balance stated in convertible bonds
equity reserve will be released to the retained earnings. No
gain or loss is recognised upon conversion or expiration of

the option.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts or payments
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at
the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(vii) Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKAS 39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

Income taxes for the period comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income in
which case the taxes are also recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue is recognised to the extent when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue
can be measured reliably.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
customers, provided that the Group retains neither managerial
involvement to the degree associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold.

Interest income is accrued on a time-apportioned basis by
reference to the principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

The group entities incorporated in Hong Kong manage a
defined contribution Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
"MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed
by an independent trustee for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF scheme. The Group
makes contributions based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries funded by the Group and are charged to
profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans are
recognised as an expense in profit or loss when the services
are rendered by the employees.

(ii) Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies other
than the currency of the primary economic environment in which
they operate (the “functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
HK$) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate). Exchange differences recognised in profit or loss of
group entities’ separate financial statements on the translation
of long-term monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are reclassified to
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign

exchange reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result in an
outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of the
Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); or
The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personal services to
the reporting entity or to the parent of the reporting
entity.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R & i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family members
who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that
person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(ili) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits
held at call with banks. Bank overdrafts that are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash

flows.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill
has been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the
directors to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from
the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

The Group reviews and identifies, at the end of each financial
period, provision for inventories (if any) based on recent sales
performance, management experience with characteristic
customer purchase behavior and assessment of the product’s
alignment with current market trend. The management estimates
the net realisable value for inventories based primarily on the latest
market prices and current market conditions. The assessment of
the provision amount required involves management judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision charge/written back
in the period in which the estimate has been changed.

The Group determines the depreciation amount of property, plant
and equipment and amortisation of intangible assets based on the
estimated useful life, which are reviewed at each reporting period
end. The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the
useful life and residual value include those related to the mode of
operations, government regulations and scrap value of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets in future.

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Group carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions, and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in tax
legislations. Where the final tax outcome of these transactions
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
difference will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the year in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences and all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and the unused tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future
taxable profits, which affects the probability of utilisation and tax
rate to be used in the calculations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R & i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

A number of liabilities included in the Group’s financial statements
require measurement at, and/or disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and non-
financial liabilities utilises market observable inputs and data as far
as possible. Inputs used in determining fair value measurements
are categorised into different levels based on how observable the
inputs used in the valuation technique utilised are (“fair value
hierarchy”):

3 Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical items
(unadjusted);

o Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other than Level
1 inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from market
data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based on the
lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant effect on the
fair value measurement of the item. Transfers of items between

levels are recognised in the period they occur.

The Group measures the other financial liabilities at fair value.
For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the items above, please refer to the applicable

notes.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting, in accordance with the Group's internal organisation
and reporting structure, provided to the chief operating decision-maker
to make strategic decisions.

During the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group principally operates
in one business segment, which is the sale of lighting products and
household furniture in Hong Kong. Therefore, no segment reporting
information presented for the year ended 31 March 2015.

The Group has identified two reportable segments during the year
ended 31 March 2016 as a result of acquisition of tableware and
giftware operation. The segments are managed separately as each
business offers different products and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations in each of
the Group’s reportable segments:
Lighting and furniture products - retail of lighting products and
household furniture in
Hong Kong

Tableware and giftware products - retail and wholesale of
tableware and giftware
products

Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to prices charged
to external parties for similar order. Central revenue and expenses are
not allocated to the operating segments as they are not included in
the measure of the segments’ profit that is used by the chief operating
decision-maker for assessment of segment performance.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R & i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continvea) 6. DEER @
For the year ended 31 March 2016 BE-Z—ARE=A=1+—HILHF
E

Lighting and  Tableware
furniture and giftware

products products Total
yn:=iDNe Z2AR
REEMR BREM st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Revenue to external customers K EINBEFE YA 85,911 20,577 106,488
Reportable segment result WD HRE 5,646 2,666 8,312
Other segment information Hihb &R :
Interest income A EUWA 43 = 43
Depreciation of property, plantand  ¥)% - B &R EH
equipment e 1,732 35 1,767
Provision for obsolete inventories [REFE RS 1,209 - 1,209
Additions to non-current assets NBEIEREEE 902 85 987
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

2016
—E-RE
HK$’000
FHET
Reportable segment result EmRDEEE 8,312
Other gain — gain on change in fair value Hilam — B BB R kR
of financial liabilities at AFEFENERBEZ
fair value through profit or loss N EZE W 19,085
Unallocated corporate expenses (note) H bR o Be b 35 < (M EE) (21,576)
Finance costs BATE BN (10)
Consolidated profit before tax R A% Al A7 & g A 5,811
Note:  The unallocated corporate expenses mainly consist of iz : RORCERAZIETEZEREPAE

rentals for office premises and warehousing facilities,
staff costs (including salaries to administrative staff and
emoluments to directors) and professional expenses.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016

EhEBEREEE BEIRA(E
RITRABRFHE REEFHM) &
BEXEM -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B 55 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEE @

2016
—B-ARF
HK$'000
FET

Assets BE
Lighting and furniture products R R R AL E 48,276
Tableware and giftware products ZEANELE®R 3,882
Segment assets DEBE E 52,158
Intangible assets mILEE 6,701
Goodwill EES 36,906
Consolidated total assets REREE 95,765

Liabilities afE
Lighting and furniture products R R R AL E 8,761
Tableware and giftware products ZEANELE® 1,861
Segment liabilities HEEE 10,622
Unallocated deferred tax liabilities RO BRETIEA G 1,105
Other financial liabilities HtEaR 5,283
Consolidated total liabilities REMBAR 17,010
The following table provides an analysis of the TREBJIAEBRBENBEFE 2

Group’s revenue from external customers: =2

2016 2015
—EB—REF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Hong Kong (place of domicile) BB (FT7EHD) 86,883 80,416
North America Jb=M 15,519 -
PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE(TBIERE) 1,432 =
Other countries E MR 2,654 -
106,488 80,416

ETRPAEEZERERAT —T A FFHR 83



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BF 73R 3R i =E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (ontinued) 6. DEPE Rl
During the year ended 31 March 2016, revenue from one REE=ZT—R"EF=A=1+—ALFER
customer of the Group's tableware and giftware products AEBE —ZBARERERDSBERNEL
segment amounted to $15,519,000, which represents 10% or BHRA T #915,519,0008 LA « (h A EH 8
more of the Group’s revenue (2015: None). WAKBBI10%(ZZ—AHF : ) -
7. REVENUE 7. €%
2016 2015
—E—XE —E—AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Sales of lighting and furniture products & & &fi &2 5% AL EE 85,911 80,416
Sales of tableware and giftware products 4% 2 B M1& @ 2= 20,577 -
106,488 80,416
8. OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 8. HMWAKWas
2016 2015
ZB-RF —E—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Bank interest income RITHEMA 46 53
Gain on change in fair value EREBERREATEFTEN
of financial liabilities at fair TRBECATFEES
value through profit or loss Wz 19,085 -
Others Eb 199 54
19,330 107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R & i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

9. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 9. BRBIADEF (E518)
Profit/(Loss) before tax is arrived at after charging: BB AR (1) Bk :
2016 2015
ZEB—RF —ZT—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET BT
Auditor’s remuneration ZE BB & 1,000 610
Costs of inventories recognised as HBRAER X FEEKA
expenses 52,606 31,566
Provision for obsolete inventories [(REFEEE 1,209 =
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BERBHEOITE
equipment 1,767 1,428
Amortisation of intangible assets A 1,340 -
Lease payments under operating leases: &KEFHEBE N 2HENMNK ¢
Minimum lease payments HIEAE K 27,634 23,885
Contingent rent SAEE 591 702
28,225 24,587
Listing expenses (including professional ~ FHX(BEEEER K
fees and other expenses) Hak) - 13,713
Less: Amount capitalised w o BRME = (5,666)
- 8,047
Employee costs (note 10) EEKA(HIzE10) 20,371 15,495
Finance costs B 7% X AR
— interest on convertible bonds — AR ESFE 10 -
10. EMPLOYEE COSTS 10. EE R
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Employee costs (including directors) BERA(BIEES)
comprise: BIE -
Salaries and other benefits e kEMET 19,587 14,887
Contributions to defined contribution A 7€ &8 FGR IR ETE)
retirement plans 2 LR 784 608
20,371 15,495
TRASEZERERAT —T—"FFR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BF 73R 3R i =E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE M. EBEZHFMEREZSESHFMA L
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The aggregate amount of emoluments paid or payable to each of BEXIENTBNEFNEFMAEDT
the directors is as follows:

Executive directors HITES
The emoluments paid or payable to executive directors during the RAFED I BN FRITESOFMH G
year are as follows: T

Contributions
Salaries to defined
and  contribution

other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
FeR EhaHEN
ik HAEH RAFHEIZ N st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-Z-K%E
ZA=t+-HL
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond B - 1,315 18 1,333
Hue Kwok Chiu e - 520 18 538
Chou Hing Yan Stephen (i) TMELG) - 444 17 461
Hui Kwok Wing (ii) EEIES()] - 366 12 378
= 2,645 65 2,710
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-S-1E
=ZA=t+-BL
Hui Kwok Keung Raymond B - 1,300 18 1,318
Hue Kwok Chiu RS - 284 10 294
Chou Hing Yan Stephen MEC - 481 18 499
- 2,065 46 2,1
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE NZZFMRAEERSFHA L@
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the RAEEER XN T B IERITESNEES N
year are as follows: I

Contributions

Salaries to defined
and  contribution
other retirement
Fees benefits plans Total
ek BEBHRR
ik Hi @A BGHEZHR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TET
Year ended 31 March 2016 BE-ZE-—RE
ZA=t—-AL
Chung Wai Man BEX 167 - - 167
Leung Wai Chuen PER 167 - - 167
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann 15 167 - - 167
501 - - 501
Year ended 31 March 2015 BE-_Z-1E
ZA=t—-AL
Chung Wai Man (iii) SE1E i) 67 = = 67
Leung Wai Chuen (iii) PR (iii) 67 - - 67
Yeung Mo Sheung Ann (iii) THE (i) 67 - - 67
201 - - 201
() Resigned on 1 March 2016. (i) M-E—R"FE=F—H#T-
(i) Appointed on 19 June 2015. (il ZERZ=ZZT—ARF~A+1A-
(i) The independent non-executive directors, Chung Wai iy R=ZFE—MWFANA+—H @ &EEX -
Man, Leung Wai Chuen and Yeung Mo Sheung Ann were RERRGRIBEZERE LN
appointed on 11 September 2014. B%x o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BF 73R 3R i =E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

11. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (continued)

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2015: two) were directors of the Company whose
emoluments are included in the disclosures in note 11(a) above.
The emoluments of the remaining three (2015: three) individuals

are as follows:

MN.EEHMRAEEESHFMA L -

AEENARRSHFMALR  EFRER
ARABER(ZZE—01F : ME)  FINH
BE K11 (@) R EHIKEE - SR =8 AL
(ZZ—HF: ZR)NFMOT

2016 2015

—E—XRE T —hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits e R EMEF 1,816 1,518
Contributions to defined contribution FIERHEIUERTEIZ

retirement plans T 54 53

1,870 1,571

Emoluments paid to each of above individuals for each of the year
fell within the following band:

HENFATEER DR ATZBT

2016 2015

—E—RF ZE—h%F

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

ATHEE ATHIEE

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZE%71.1,000,000 3 3

During the year ended 31 March 2016, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the directors of the Company or the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil). None of
the directors nor the five highest paid individuals has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year (2015: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income represents:

12. FiiSHiRA %
A RERAERTOFEHALES

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNEATIE — BAEFET
— charge for the year —ARFEZH 446 298
— over provision in respect of prior year — — B E S BB RVE (65) (35)
381 263

Deferred tax (note 23) EAEFIE (FF5E23)

— charge/(credit) for the year —REELH (3EH) (227) 193
Income tax expense FTiS i 2 154 456

EBFERERENFEE NG ERBOERIZ
16.5%(—F—FH%F : 16.5%)5tH -

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on the
estimated assessable profits for the year.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit/(loss)
before tax per the consolidated statements of comprehensive income as

REFZMSHHA A BiRE 2 EK SR RAER
HADEH, (1R RN T -

follows:
2016 2015
—E—XAF —E—AhF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET BT
Profit/(Loss) before tax BR&SRTE A, (E518) 5,811 (12,241)
Tax calculated at the domestic tax rate of IZZARMFIE16.5%( —F—FF :
16.5% (2015: 16.5%) 16.5% )5t & 2 1A 959 (2,020)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AR S 2
for tax purposes Wiss 2 = 1,468
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERRNGEEEE=8 2
differences not recognised RS = 2 158 195
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERREEIE 2 RS E 2,290 857

Tax effect of income not taxable for AR A 2 BTG &
tax purpose (3,157) 9)
Utilisation of tax loss previously R SR ATER 2 TR IS5 18

not recognised (31) -

Over-provision in respect of prior year BEFE R (65) (35)

Income tax expense FTiS i 2 154 456
EREKEZERERAT —T—"FF®



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. 8REF,(F1])
The calculation of basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share attributable AANREZEAEANEHZERERALNEER
to the equity holders of the Company is based on the following data: M (E1E) HERA TN &IETE
2016 2015
ZB-ARF —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Earnings/(Loss): BF,(&A) :
Profit/(Loss) for the year for FETE =R ER
the purpose of calculating &aF,/(E8)z
basic earnings/(loss) per share FAmF, (E8) 5,657 (12,697)
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: B8k 2 £
— Interest on convertible bonds — AR RESF B (T8 55E)
(net of tax) 9 =
— Fair value change in contingent —ERNIAREB AT EEZS
consideration payables (3,654) -
Adjusted profit/(loss) for the purpose Mt EEREE
of calculating diluted B, (E8)z
earnings/(loss) per share AR, (E8) 2,012 (12,697)
2016 2015
ZB-ARF —E-hF
‘000 ‘000
T8 T %
Number of shares: RHEE :
Weighted average number of shares M EEBRER
for the purpose of calculating basic a¥/ (Er)z
earnings/(loss) per share IEFEE M EE 409,805 351,233
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares: &£ & & i@AL » F2 £ -
— Convertible Bonds | — AR ES — 3,230 =
— Convertible Bonds Il — AR ES = 1,423 -
Adjusted weighted average number METESREE
of shares for the purpose of calculating &%,/ (G#E)Z
diluted earnings/(loss) per share KR NI IR D 2B 414,458 351,233
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #=& B 7% 3 3= i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE (continued)

Basic earnings/(loss) per share was calculated by dividing the profit/
(loss) attributable to the shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended 31 March 2016
was calculated by adjusting the earnings/(loss) and weighted average
number of shares to assume dilutive potential ordinary shares from
Convertible Bonds | and First Batch of Convertible Bonds Il as the
relevant profit condition is considered satisfied at end of reporting
period. No effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares from second batch
of Convertible Bonds Il as the condition for issuance are not satisfied as
at 31 March 2016.

The weighted average number of shares for the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the year ended 31
March 2015 has been retrospectively adjusted for the issue of shares
during the reorganisation and capitalisation issue as disclosed in the
paragraphs headed “Reorganisation” of the section headed “History,
Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” of the Prospectus as if the
shares had been in issue throughout the entire reporting periods. As
there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares for the year ended 31
March 2015, the diluted earnings/(loss) per share is the same as basic
earnings/(loss) per share.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend payment of any dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed since the
end of reporting period (2015: Nil).

13.

14.

FREF, (BE)w@
SREARF,(FR) RBREEEAF (5
18) B OAE B BT ERR 0 0T B 3
o

AEEE—T-ARF-AZ+ - HLEFENER

BERN (BB DBRRAEEZENAIARE
F—REH B ﬁﬁ_(%),@ﬂ”—ﬁt—ﬁﬁ
RES-—ZBIGHEERREHRRELRR)Z

%@Hﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%&%ﬂ/(@ﬂé)&ED%:H’:]H%%%I
B> dRE _HABRRES - 2BTHRER-F
—RFEZA=F—HAERHRE WU EEEEE
TRETE -

AEBEET-RF-A=+HULEFENER
%$&T§E?§§%‘ I/ (BB ZmEFHRMBEE
RBRERE [EE - SEHERFRE | —5 [ E4 ]
—BAEENEAETROREMCBEITMIEL
L/F)iuﬂ%‘ 0 ﬁZZDEZ%Hﬂ REE IHHF'EJEE’”EH ° H

EELRR  wEREERF (BB 2TRE

AEF,(BE)IER -

g B
EFeTEEMBE—_T - R"E=A=+—A1L
FEIRMERRE - T8 WS HEAE B AR

BEBENEARS(ZT—RF: &) -

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ_Z—

ANEZA=+-BLEFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& BF 73R 3R i =E

15. 9% ~ BENZRE

Furniture,
Leasehold  fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
EZ-IE
HEMFEE HERRE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHERx FTHERT THET
Cost A
As at 1 April 2014 RZZE—NFMA—H 4,299 1,493 5,792
Additions at cost X AN A0 2,466 494 2,960
Disposal RE (50) = (50)
As at 31 March 2015 RZE—HF
=A=t+—H 6,715 1,987 8,702
Additions at cost X AN 40 708 279 987
Acquired through business combination BBEBAUE 7 57 64
Disposal RBE (180) - (180)
As at 31 March 2016 RZZE—RF
= == 7,250 2,323 9,573
Accumulated depreciation REtiE
As at 1 April 2014 R-ZE—MEEPA—H 2,996 846 3,842
Depreciation e 1,209 219 1,428
Written back on disposal BRERRE (50) = (50)
As at 31 March 2015 RZZT—HF
=A=+—H 4,155 1,065 5,220
Depreciation e 1,445 322 1,767
Written back on disposal I B o) (180) = (180)
As at 31 March 2016 RZZE—REF
=A=+—H 5,420 1,387 6,807
Net book value IREFE
As at 31 March 2015 RZE—ARF
=A=+—H 2,560 922 3,482
As at 31 March 2016 RZT—REF
=A=+—H 1,830 936 2,766
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B 55 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (ontineesy ~ 15. ¥ % - B E R 3B =

The following is an analysis of the cost of property, plant and equipment LNTAFKREZAFRERNAFTANYME - BE
which was fully depreciated but still in use at end of year. KR AEK AR AT -
Cost
2%
HK$'000
FHET
As at 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=A=+—H 3,288
As at 31 March 2016 RZZE—RF=A=+—H 4,344
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &EE
Customers
relationship
EEBRR
HK$'000
FHET
Cost 2%
As at 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 RZZE-—NFNA—BR=-ZT—HF
=A=+--H -
Addition through business combination BB T 8,041
As at 31 March 2016 RZZE—RFE=A=+—A1 8,041
Accumulated amortisation Rt
As at 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 RZZBE-—NFNA-—BR-ZT—HF
=A=+--H -
Amortisation 5 1,340
As at 31 March 2016 RZZE—RF=A=+—H 1,340
Net boot value BREFE
As at 31 March 2015 RZZE—RF=RA=+—H =
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RFE=H=+—H 6,701
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to cash
generating unit (“CGU") of sales of tableware and giftware. The
recoverable amounts of the CGU have been determined from value in
use calculations based on cash flow projections from formally approved

budgets covering a five-year period and adopted pre-tax discount rate of

19.9%. Cash flow beyond the five-year period is extrapolated using an
estimated weighted average growth rate of 3%, which does not exceed
the long-term growth rate for the industry. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are budgeted gross margin of 13% to 16%
and growth rate 3% to 50%, which are determined based on the unit’s

past performance and management’s expectations regarding market

development. The discount rate is determined based on the Hong Kong
risk-free interest rate adjusted by the specific risk associated with the
CGU.

The recoverable amount of the goodwill determined in the above

manner suggested that there was no impairment in the value of

goodwill as at 31 March 2016.

The directors believe that any reasonable possible change in the key

assumptions on which recoverable amount is based would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of the CGU.
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17. GOODWILL 17. 858

HK$'000
FTHET

As at 1 April 2014 and 31 March 2015 RZZE—WFHNA—HBR=_ZT—HF
ER=ET—E =
Acquired through business combination (note 25) BIBETA GRS (F13E25) 36,906
As at 31 March 2016 RZE—RFE=HA=+—~H 36,906

Impairment of goodwiill BERE

BRENSANE  BREOIEEZEAREREZ
HeEAEM([REEEEN ) RSELBUDN
Al El &ML EREEET - MEREBEDRE
K ENAFHBEENRES RETER KX19.9%F
AT KA ESE - BARAFHENRERED
FEAGBTFHEREINEE - FEAKERTS
RISHRAERE - FREAENERENEE
BREABBEENERAI13%E16% NTEERERA
3%%50% * ILMIB IR E B A BERERE
EEHMEERNEBEHERT - FTAMKREDIRE
ERERBRFEME - WHIESEEEMAIERH
EJ—L ;ﬂﬁko

NESTAEEHEAN RO SBEATHENR_F
RFEZA=+—HENEELERE -

BEEMRE - TRESFEMKRENEZRIZOER
REARENEITECHEELBUNRELAE
BHERW@ESER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B 55 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. 78

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hfF

HKS$'000 HK$°000

FET FET

Merchandise 7] oh 20,866 21,104
Goods in transit EEEY - 1,257
Total 1B5 20,866 22,361
Less: Provision for obsolete inventories o REFERE (1,209) -
19,657 22,361

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. B IE K H i E U FRIE

2016 2015

—EB—RE —ET—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET T

Trade receivables FE U R IE 814 683
Deposits and other receivables He R H AL B GIE 9,252 8,317
Prepayments TERTRIE 3,358 2,428
Total 4Bt 13,424 11,428
Less: non-current — rental deposits W SERNEI - EXR S (4,665) (4,935)
8,759 6,493

The average credit period on sales of goods is 30 days from invoice date. HEBEMNFIEEHAEERBTI0XK °
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continues)

Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors with the

19. FEYLFRIR % E Ath FE WK )

FE AR TR IR B H At R I ROR O R MR TR IR B R

following ageing analysis, based on invoice dates: HHARRRER DT T -
2016 2015
—EB—RE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Within 30 days 30K 469 428
31 to 90 days 31E90K 251 189
91 to 180 days 91£ 180K 56 41
Over 180 days BB 180K 38 25
814 683

As the end of year, the Group reviews trade and other receivables for

REK - REBIRER R K2

FLAEE B e YRR OR

evidence of impairment on both individual and collective basis. Based on
the impairment assessment, no impairment loss has been recognised as
at 31 March 2016 and 2015. The Group did not hold any collateral as
security or other credit enhancement over the trade receivables.

The ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired are
as follows:

R E A EURIB A A S LR RE - BEBRE
FE R AFEER=E—RAF=A=+—H
I 4% W SR A DR (E 518 o 2N 5 (B 3 4 It B W KB
58 E AR R E AT IR s E A {5 B IS ARIE 16 o

ERBERRE 2 BUGRIERBRER T

2016 2015

—E—RE —E—hE

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Neither past due nor impaired P 4 260 HA ol Rk B 469 428
Past due but not impaired: B AR ARRE

Less than 90 days D90 K 281 230

91 to 180 days 91E180K 26 3

Over 180 days BB 180K 38 22

345 255

814 683

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record of
credit with the Group. Based on past credit history, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
the balances are still considered to be fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B 55 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

21.

20. FEASRRIE R H AR A 7R

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—RHF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Trade payables FET5RIE 4,545 2,750
Receipt in advance B U FRIE 982 1,215
Accruals and other payables JE 5 R IE K2 H A P A 338 4,655 2,816
10,182 6,781

Trade payables are non-interest bearing. The Group is normally granted
credit terms ranging from 30 to 180 days.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors with the

FEN FIRRAFHE » AEE—RENF30E180
RZEEB -

FH AR SRR e H At FE 5 OB B0 JE N SRR IR B R

following ageing analysis, based on invoice dates: HHARRER DTN T -
2016 2015
—B-AF —F—HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Within 30 days 30 R 1,978 1,341
31 to 60 days 31260K 300 283
61 to 90 days 61290K 348 862
Over 90 days HBBI0K 1,919 264
4,545 2,750

AMOUNT DUE TO A CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

The amount due to a controlling shareholder is unsecured, interest
free and repayable on demand and fully repaid during the year ended
31 March 2016.

21. B — BRI R FRIE
BN —RERRRFIEAEET  RENRBERE

KEERERBE_T—AF=A=+—RiILE
ERHMEE -
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

22. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

On 13 May 2015, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with a vendor (the “Vendor”) to acquire 100% equity
interest of Top Investor Global Limited and its subsidiaries (together
collectively referred as “Trendmall Group”) (the “Acquisition”). The
Acquisition was completed on 4 June 2015 (the “Acquisition Date”)
(note 25).

The considerations of the Acquisition were to be satisfied by the issue
of convertible bonds of the Company with a principal amount of
HK$35,725,000 (the “Considerations” or “Convertible Bonds”). The
aggregate sum of HK$10,717,500 of Convertible Bonds (“Convertible
Bonds |”) were issued by the Company to the Vendor upon completion
of the Acquisition on the Acquisition Date. The aggregate sum of
HK$25,007,500 of Convertible Bonds (“Convertible Bonds I1”) shall be
issued by the Company to the Vendor in two batches, upon fulfillment
of the profit guarantee of the Trendmall Group. The total audited
consolidated net profit after tax of the Trendmall Group for the two
years ending 31 December 2016 shall not be less than HK$3,200,000
(the “Profit Guarantee”). For details of the terms of the Acquisitions,
please refer to the Company’s announcements made on 13 May 2015,
21 May 2015 and 4 June 2015.

The initial recognition of the fair value of the Consideration/Convertible
Bonds at Acquisition Date is summarised as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

22. Hittema s

R-TE—hERAA+=0 AEECEEH([E
75 1) 513 B B # 3% AU B Top Investor Global
Limited & E i B A Al (5518 4 [ Trendmall £ & |)
100% AR ([WEEE]) - KBESFBEER =
T—RFNAMA ([UWEB )5k (FE25) °

RNA B EEITAS H5EA35,725,0007% 702 Al #2
BREFEARE(TRE Ik [AHRKRES]) - 258
10,717,500 L 2 Al ¥ e & 5 ([ AT AR (EH— )
ERBEBHARRTR KEFEERE S &
T © #%825,007,500% 7T 2 AT 2R & 5 ([ ] #2A%
&% = |)BAR AR F R Trendmall £ B 2 5% 5 (R
FEOSMALAE HETT > Trendmall EBEHE=-F
—ANET A=+ BUIMEEENEEZRTHE
BB FRBETIS 123,200,000/ 7T (3 FIR
B WEFEBEZHBEL2HBARALGBE A
—E-RFRA+=A - ZE-—FHFRA-F+—
AR—E—RAFNANHMNRE -

REEBRRE FITRRESFATEZTRERE
AR

Fair value recognised on Acquisition Date R BER 2 AFE HK$'000
FAT
Considerations RE

Convertible bonds | (note a) AR ES —(HsEa)
— liability component — B &R 242
— equity component —HEmEb 13,869
14,111

Convertible bonds Il (note b) AR ES = (H5Eb)
— contingent consideration payables —ENSARE 30,606
Total Considerations (note 25) B E (MiaE25) 44,717
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AP RAR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

22. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

Convertible Bonds |

On 4 June 2015, the Company issued Convertible Bonds | with
an aggregate principal amount of HK$10,717,500 upon the
completion of Acquisition.

The Convertible Bonds | form part of the Convertible Bonds, which
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, carried interest at the rate
of 1% per annum and will be matured three years from the date
of issue.

The Convertible Bonds holders are entitled to convert the
Convertible Bonds into ordinary shares of the Company at an
initial conversion price of HK$0.7 per conversion share (subject to
the normal adjustments pursuant to the terms and conditions of
the convertible bonds) at any time during the period commencing
from the date of issuance of the Convertible Bonds to the maturity
date of three years term. On maturity date, any Convertible
Bonds not being redeemed or converted shall be automatically
converted into conversion shares at the conversion price subject to
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity
conversion component were determined at the issuance of the
Convertible Bonds I.

Movements and reconciliation of financial liabilities carried at fair
value based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the
year are as follows:

22. Hit e mBEw
Wit

(a)

AR 5 —

R-Z—FAFNAMNA » ARFR TR URE
EIE143E1T4E%E 10,717,500 7T 2 Al A AL (E
o

PR AR — R AR E S 2 — 8 - B
TRHE - FHAER1% - BEETH R
=FEH o

Al IR B 5317 B BE = 2 8 B 1 B
A ATBRBRESFE A RERRERE
B 0.7B T Z NPT RRERAREZE
188 P (A AR 4% AT 2 A48 25 22 {6 R B (R 5 T A
—MRFE) - REIFB - E[ARE RS E
Z AR AR 55 B SR i Bk B 8 i i AR
0 HEZRETRIER ERAZARR

BEBO RERBH 2 AFEERETAHR
&5 —BSETE

NEE B RIBEE KT ] 8 R HG ABUK
(F=R)EATEIENEMmeRABE Y
BRANT :

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—AF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT

Convertible Bonds I: ARRES—
At beginning of the year FY LR = -
Issuance of Convertible Bonds | BT AR IES — 14,111 -
Fair value of equity component = 2 AT E (13,869) -
Fair value of liability component at date of issue X #77BHl 2 B &3H 2 A FE 242 -
Converted during the year (note i) F R (K EED (242) -

At end of the year FRAERR - -

MEEi RAFE - N&4%10,717,5008 7T
ZABRES—BERER0TETZ
HARE 515,310,714 F R EE
0.01B L2 L@k -

Note i During the year, all Convertible Bond | with an aggregate
principal amounts of HK$10,717,500 were converted
into 15,310,714 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the
conversion price of HK$0.70 per share.
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

22. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b)

Convertible Bonds Il

The Convertible Bonds Il with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$25,007,500 shall be issued by the Company in two
batches. The first batch of Convertible Bonds Il shall be issued
by the Company after determination of the audited results of
the Trendmall Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2015 based on the Profit Guarantee and adjustment to the
Consideration formula. The second batch of Convertible Bonds II
shall be payable and issued by the Company after determination
of the results of the Trendmall Group for the financial year ending
31 December 2016 based on the Profit Guarantee and adjustment
to the Consideration formula. For details of the Profit Guarantee
and adjustment to the Consideration formula, please refer to the
Company’s announcements dated 13 May 2015.

As the issuance of Convertible Bonds Il is subject to the Profit
Guarantee, the directors of the Company consider that the it is a
contingent consideration payables which should be recognised at
fair value at the end of each reporting period, with resulting gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss.

Movements and reconciliation of financial liabilities carried at fair
value based on significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) during the
year are as follows:

22. Ht e mAaE
MisE : (&

(b)

AR E % =

4% 25,007,500 T2 A IR EH —
DEBLET BUHAURRESF-ZERE
ETrendmall EKEHZEZE=—ZT—HF+=A
=+ —HIEBRFENEEZEERIZET
RERREABRAKXNBARR T - F4t
AR ES - ARETE Trendmall EEEH E
T ANE+ A=+ AL BREENL
BEERRZNRBRREFAELNXNAR
AAEELT o mAREBERAREABRLAR ZFH1B
ELHENRARARBRAE-_T—AFAA
+=BHRE -

HRARBRIREZTAIRRES - A
AEESRASERNENIARE  LARE
BEPRRRATEAR - BBREHER -

N E LB RIBERE KT ] 82 65 A SR
(BF=FEBEQAFEIGNEMNESREE Y
BRU0R ¢

2016 2015
—EB—XRF —ZT—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Convertible Bond Il - contingent ARRES = - N
consideration payables: RARNKE :
At beginning of the year FHEEER - -
Additions from acquisition of subsidiaries W B A R 30,606 -
Issuance of First batch of Convertible Bonds Il 8775 —#t AT AR &S =
(note i) GED (6,487) =
Change in fair value NEEES) (19,085) -
At end of the year (note ii) FEREEER (TN 5,034 -
Gain on change in fair value of financial FRBERREATEAEN
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss BB AFEEZH KN
(note 8) (PfFZES) (19,085) =
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

22. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(b) Convertible Bonds Il (continued)

(i)

First Batch of Convertible Bond Il

On 26 February 2016, Convertible Bonds Il in the principal
amount of HK$12,620,245 (“First Batch of Convertible Bond
I1") has issued to the Vendor upon determination of the
results of the Trendmall Group for financial year ended 31
December 2015.

The movement of First Batch of Convertible Bonds Il issued
during the year are as follows:

22. Hit e mBEw

FieE : ()

(b) THERES = =)

(i)

F—H AR ES =
RZEBE—RE-_A-+B X254
12,620,245 L AT R EHF = ([ F —
LA ES — |) E R EE Trendmall
SEEE—_ZFT—AF+-_A=+—HL
M FERNEERREHET -

BT 2 E—HABBIES = RALE
ERBHMT :

Liability Equity
component component Total
=Nl D st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
At beginning of the year FHEER - - -
Issued during the year (note a) FREET (K 5Ea) 317 6,170 6,487
Converted during the year (note b) F AR (FEEb) (71) (1,716) (1,787)
Interested expenses BT 2 = 2
At end of the year (note c) FR#EH (FizE) 248 4,454 4,702

Notes: Pt EE

a.  First Batch of Convertible Bonds Il was issued and
contains liability and equity component.

b.  First Batch of Convertible Bonds Il with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$3,000,000 were converted
during the year (note 24(d)).

c. Asat 31 March 2016, First Batch of Convertible Bonds
Il'in the principal amount of HK$9,620,245 were in
issue.

Second batch of Convertible Bonds Il

As the issuance of second batch of Convertible Bonds |l
which was subject to Profit Guarantee and was still classified
as financial liabilities and re-measured to fair value at the
end of the reporting period and recognised in profit or loss
during the year.

a. FHUARREF_ESBTRE
SRENRESED

b. R4 % /43,000,000 T2 % —
HAT MR ES —ERAREE KR
(Ft3E24(d)) °

¢ RIE—XRF=A=+—-HB ' &
B HR9,620,245 T 2 F —#t
AR ER B T -

LA ES =
A A AR BB A R 78 31T 5 — AT 3
BEx—  ZESFDEREBEE -
WHRmEHRIZAFEERAELE
REERBHER

ERAKEZERARAT —TNFFER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & BA 53R 3R T 5E

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z— ~"F=A=+—HILLFE

22. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

102

(9]

Fair value

The fair value measurement of the convertible bonds and
contingent consideration payables (Convertible Bonds Il) have
been categorised into level 3 fair value hierarchy as defined in
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (note 29(ii)). The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified with reference to the
observability and significant of the inputs used in the valuation
technique.

The Company determined the fair value of convertible bonds and

22. Ht e mAaE

5T
(c)

(&)

DFE

AR ES — REMNHARE (AT RERES
DIEBARKE %EM”%&%@EEW%B%TQ
FEFE IFRERNE =R ¥Tﬁlﬁi&(f§ﬁﬁi
29(ii)) - B AFEFEDRNERTDIELE
ﬁﬁﬁxiﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁu)\%ﬁ)‘éﬁ’]T&ﬁ%!E&E%‘&’I‘E
REEE o

AR AIRIBB AT A — B AR R

contingent consideration payables (Convertible Bonds Il) based HEITZHEETE T BRRES — REMSAR
on the valuation performed by an independent valuer using the BB ESE )2 ATE - TEBERHA
Binomial Tree Model. The major inputs into the model was as g
follows:
As at As at As at
4 June 26 February 31 March
2015 2016 2016
RZZE—RF RZZT—FRTF RIE—KEF
S~NAMH —AZ+/"H =ZBA=+—H
(note i) (note ii) (note iii)
(B &%) CBf i) ( Bff =iii)
Expected future share price (HK$) FaHA A AR AR B (B T) 0.93-0.94 0.33 0.32
Exercise price (HK$) TEEET) 0.70 0.70 0.70
Expected additional yield spread FEEfERIN R = TR 13.84% 8.26% 7.66%
Expected volatility TEEHR I8 61.04% 63.01% 63.06%
Risk-free interest rate 42 [ B 71| =R 0.78% 0.77% 0.81%
Notes: HtaE -
The relevant inputs are in relation to fair value measurement HEmASEEAR - — i/\
of Convertible Bonds | and Convertible Bonds Il at date of ANBEKE RS BRES—
acquisition on 4 June 2015. fRfEH -2 AT EZ -
ii.  The relevant inputs are in relation to fair value measurement i. MHEBASEIIERAR_-_ZT—RE—

of the issuance of Frist Batch of Convertible Bonds Il on 26
February 2016.

iii.  The relevant inputs are in relation to fair value measurement
of contingent consideration payables (second batch of
Convertible Bonds Il) as at 31 March 2016.

Any changes in unobservable inputs into the model could have
materially affect the fair value estimation. Details refer to note
29(ii).

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R & i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

23. DEFERRED TAX 23. LL%\EEIE\
The movements in the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the year are EEHBEAE(BB)RAFEZESHNT
as follows:
Fair value
Accelerated Decelerated adjustment on
tax tax intangible
depreciation  depreciation Tax losses assets Total
EVEE
MERERE  ARRERE g AVERE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEL T T TR TEL

Asat 1 April 2014 RZE-mEMA-A - 322 166 - 488
Charge profit or loss (note 12) REEME (HF12) - 27 (166) = (193)
As at 31 March 2015 RZZ-REZA=1-R - 2% - - 2%
Addition through business combination BREBAGNE = = = (1,326) (1,326)
Credit/(Charge) to profit o loss (note 12) REEEHA/ () (M3E12) (19 25 - iy 27
As at 31 March 2016 R-B—E=A=1-H (19 320 - (1,105) (804)
A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following: AT EIERL IR B E i R FER -
2016 2015
—RE —T—hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
F#ET BT
Deductible temporary differences AR =R 3,052 1,052
Unused tax losses RE AR EE 19,481 5,189
22,533 6,241
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the deductible ER A 2K B T8 DRI 2R 218 F ORI £ Bt AT 0 AR
temporary differences and unused tax losses due to the unpredictability ERMEEZERARDANBEBEEEREERIEE
of future profit streams. The deductible temporary differences and B RN EER R AR IEEER AL
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. [RHA%E S -

ERPAEEZERERAT —T A FFH 103
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. lg7<
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
Note ordinary shares shares
(i3 EERHE ERREE
HK$°000
THERT
Authorised: ETE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each as at SREEC.01B Tz TRER
1 April 2014, —E-MEMA—A -
31 March 2015 and “E-hRF=RB=t+—HK
31 March 2016 —ET—RF=ZA=1+—H 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :
As at 1 April 2014 RZZE—NFMA—A 1 “s
Issue of shares during reorganisation SHBFEZTHRD (@) 999 -
Issue of shares upon placing BEREZTHRD (b) 100,000,000 1,000
Issue of shares by capitalisation of B ERE MM IBEST
share premium account # % {2 (© 299,999,000 3,000
As at 31 March 2015 R-E—RF=A=1+—H 400,000,000 4,000
Issue of shares upon conversion of BRI ] S R (E o B
convertible bonds BITRD (d) 19,596,428 196
As at 31 March 2016 RZZE—AR"F=A=+—H 419,596,428 4,196
*  Represents amount less than HK$1,000 * RNMER1,0008 TR £ FE
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

24 SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

25.

(a)

(b)

On 8 September 2014, the Company allotted and issued 999
shares, credit as fully paid ordinary shares.

On 26 September 2014, the Company issued 100,000,000 new
shares with nominal value of HK$0.01 each for the placing at the
offer price of HK$0.50 each.

Pursuant to a written resolution by the shareholders on
11 September 2014, the directors were authorised to allot and
issue a total of 299,999,000 shares by way of capitalisation of the
sum of HK$2,999,990 standing to the credit of the share premium
account of the Company by applying such sum in paying up in
full at par 299,999,000 shares for allotment and issue to the then
shareholders in proportion to their respectively shareholdings.

On 19 August 2015, Convertible Bond | with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$10,717,500 were converted into
15,310,714 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the conversion
price of HK$0.7 per share (note 22).

On 2 March 2016, First Batch of Convertible Bond Il with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$3,000,000 were converted
into 4,285,714 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the conversion
price of HK$0.7 per share (note 22).

All new shares issued rank pari passu in all respects with the then

existing shares.

BUSINESS COMBINATION — ACQUISITION OF
SUBSIDIARIES

On 13 May 2015, the Group entered into a sales and purchase

agreement with a vendor to acquire 100% equity interests of Trendmall

Group. The consideration will be satisfied by the issue of convertible

bonds of the Company with a principal amount of HK$35,725,000.

The consideration is subject to the Profit Guarantee (note 22(b)). The

Acquisition was completed on 4 June 2015.

24, B 7R )

25.

GEE

REZZE—WFAANEB » RARIE A3 &3
17999 A BRFIVERE B By E B

(a)

(b) R=ZT—MENA=+XE  ARFEVANTK
0.507% JL Y 2 & (B 2 & 100,000,000 % & %
E{EO0.01 BTN °

(0 BERERR-_Z-—NWHFAA+T-—BBEN

EEMAZE  EITEBREBEAQRBRME
BEE A A E A 52,999,990 8 7T ) 3 BR X
HEFER  KMAAZEELEABERR

299,999,000 % A% 17 A & B A% 5 122 AR 42 b 51
fic 3% & 2%17299,999,000A% A% 17 °

d R=ZZ—FRFNF+IA XeEE
10,717,500 L 2 AT R EH —E X TR
078z RIRE R A15,310,714 &K
E{E0.018 w2 Tk (FizE22) -

RZE—XRNEFE=ZF=-H A& BHE
3,000,000 L2 % —# A MR ESF —Bi%
078 Lz RIR(E R 1R /54,285,714Kk T
ARMEEO.018 2 T Mk (Fizk22) -

T 2R E BB ERNZFRERE

EBRRO—WENEB AR
T—AFRAA+=H AEEBHEEAHE]L
S5 1 i AU B Trendmall £ B 100% A% AN FE 25 o
N A EEIT AR S 4% /535,725,000 7T 2 AT
1%5%1’5%&{“ ZRMBESZ 5 R B AR (T
b)) - WIEEEER T —AFNAMBETK °

n=
%S

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

25. BUSINESS COMBINATION — ACQUISITION OF 25, #7346t — WEMEB A 3 @
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the Trendmall Trendmall&E ERAUWEE A BRI EERBEHRD
Group as at the Acquisition Date were as follows: FEWR

Fair value
recognised on
Acquisition Date

RUEER
BRZNYE
HK$°000
T
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REH 64
Intangible assets B AE 8,041
Inventories FE 124
Trade and other receivables JE WS R TR T L A R KGR TR 3,308
Cash and bank balances B RIRTTHER 328
Trade and other payables JE AT R IR B EL A JE 5 5RIE (2,570)
Current tax liabilities BNEATRIE & & (158)
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIBE E (1,326)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEYR 2 A #AEEFEERE 7,811
Goodwill on acquisition U B EE A Y P 36,906
Total considerations BRE 44,717
Satisfied by: DRHEFHZA
Convertible Bonds | AR ES — 14,111
Contingent consideration payables R AKRE
— Convertible Bonds Il — AR ES = 30,606
Total considerations transferred at fair value 244K (E 7 A F1(E 44,717
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition WEEEEMIR SR AFE ¢
Cash consideration paid BERENRE -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B EREReKRSEEY 328
328
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—Z—~"F=A=+—HILFE

25. BUSINESS COMBINATION — ACQUISITION OF

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The Convertible Bonds Il includes a performance-based contingent
consideration adjustment, which was principally based on the Profit
Guarantee for the two years ending 31 December 2016 and adjustment
to the Consideration formula and to be issued in two batches (note 22).
The adjustments will therefore be fully settled after the end of the two-
year period with determining the Profits Guarantee after year ending
31 December 2016. The potential undiscounted amount of principal
amount of Convertible Bonds Il of contingent consideration adjustment
that the Group could be required to issue under this arrangement is
between HK$Nil and HK$25,007,500. At the Acquisition Date, the
fair value of the contingent consideration payables of approximately
HK$30,606,000 was determined by applying the binominal tree model
on the Convertible Bonds Il with an estimated profit in Trendmall Group
for the two years ending 31 December 2016.

The intangible assets represent customers relationship, being a network
of customers which have done business with Trendmall Group.

The amount of goodwill arising as a result of the acquisition was
HK$36,906,000, which is not deductible for tax purpose, comprises the
acquired workforce and the value of expected synergies with existing
operation of the Group.

Trendmall Group, which is principally engaged in wholesale of
tableware and giftware worldwide and a retail business of tableware
and giftware in Hong Kong, was acquired so as to diversify the business
and revenue stream of the Group.

Since the acquisition date to 31 March 2016, the acquired business
contributed HK$20,577,000 to revenue and HK$924,000 of profit to
the consolidated comprehensive income of the Group.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the Reporting
Period, the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the
Reporting Period would have been approximately HK$113,613,000 and
approximately HK$5,947,000, respectively. The pro forma information is
for illustrative purpose only.

25. XBEROT —WBHE LB w

ARRES —BFERREELHHIAREHE
FERBEERBE-ZT—"F+t-A=1T—HIEW
BF EHEFRE RRERAE AR D R ET (T
i22)  c BRAARBARMFHERRNEEHZE
- RNF+ZA=+—HLEFEEFREERSE
HHEE  AEFEEZIARBEARLE MR E
BITETEIMBENARRES 2 ASBATE
25,007,500 7T - RUEER - ERKAREZR
FE49/530,606,00078 7T + 2 = 18 T4 AR AR AL A
Trendmall REHZE—ZT—"F+_A=+—H1t
MEE 2 AR EMmMEE °

BREERSTFBEFE BB &ATrendmall S E#ETT
¥ BREMAME -

WS EE A 2 P £ 58 49/536,906,0007% 7T (N A] 1
i) B IEATUREE A 1 &R I F7 e B 3 745 ER 7K 42 ()35
BLEAMHEHELA  HRMEEE -

WETrendmallE B (X 2R EHBEEARBRE
HAZBENEEREEARBRNZE) AR
R BB P SR A5 MU ATRIR

AbERE_ZT— X "F=A=1+—BHH -
Trendmall R BIRAIAEB ARG E2EBERERE
FRE#20,577,00078 7T Mom 1 49924,00078 7T ©

HEBAEHRBERNEE  AEERS A

B EEEE N FIE S B4 4113,613,000/8 T R 4
5,947,000/ ° HEERMEMHFA -

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR
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26. RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group during the year

26. f#1E

AEBERFAFREERDOFBEHNRAERED

are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. KA o
Share premium IR E
The share premium account of the Group represents the premium REEZ BRDBRERRKRASBETROAE D
arising from the issuance of shares at premium. Hm(E o
Convertible
bonds
Share equity Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
ARRES
B4R E B RitEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHAT FHT FHT THT
As at 1 April 2014 RZE—NFEMHA—H = = (2,758) (2,758)
Issue of shares upon placing BIER & 21T (D
(note 24(b)) (P 5E24(b)) 49,000 - - 49,000
Issue of shares by capitalisation of B aEBREAN LR
share premium account (note 24(c)) BITH R
(P EE24(c)) (3,000) - - (3,000)
Expenses incurred in connection with — 1RIE A S 2178 H
the issue of shares upon placing FTEENFAS (5,666) - - (5,666)
Loss and total comprehensive income — F R E1E K
for the year FHENGESE = = (7,988) (7,988)
As at 31 March 2015 RZE—HF
=A=+—8H 40,334 = (10,746) 29,588
Issue of convertible bonds BATAIAARE S = 20,039 - 20,039
Issue of shares upon conversion of REE A T R (E A
convertible bonds BT 15,710 (15,585) = 125
Profit and total comprehensive income  £E 73 F1| &2
for the year FEWEERE = = 19,115 19,115
As at 31 March 2016 RZTE—RF
=B=+—H 56,044 4,454 8,369 68,867
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27. LEASE 27. 88
The Group leases various offices, retail shops and warehouses under AEERETAREEERZERETHAR
non-cancellable lease agreements. The lease agreements are between TEERIEE ZESHEHBZAN —Z==F
one and three years, and majority of lease arrangements are renewable RNED T E R B ] A TH BA 45 R 1B IR T8 E 18 ANk =
at the end of the lease period with either pre-set increment rate or SNEEFTHFERNTIHL R FLAEE -
market rate to be agreed with landlords.
The operating leases of certain retail shops also call for additional ETZEEHENKCEHEENEREINES - B
rentals, which will be based on a certain percentage of revenue of LB REBESHERRE BOGRRGEHRBE
the operation being undertaken therein pursuant to the terms and EEBUEN—TEEILTE - ARZETER
conditions as stipulated in the respective rental agreements. As the RIS B AN ERERE T - I EmEH7
future revenue of these retail shops could not be accurately determined stAMERES AR S -
as at the end of the year, the relevant contingent rentals have not been
included.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BETARESCEHNERRAE  TEEHR
operating leases in respect of offices, retail shops and warehouses are as BB X MHARKRKEESHRIBAEFNT -
follows:
2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE—hF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FBT
Not later than one year —FR 22,205 18,448
Later than one year and not later than —FBRAFHN
five years 13,795 13,668
36,000 32,116
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28. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. B AR H
Other than those balances of related party as disclosed elsewhere in the M AR A B RS R H 4th 28 BT 3% 35 RE B 7 AS 2R AN
consolidated financial statements, the Group had the following material AREBREE-_ZE—XRNER-_ZE—HF=AH
transactions with its related parties during the year ended 31 March =t+—HAILFERNGEEE A ETTIERARS -

2016 and 2015.

Key management includes directors and senior managements. The FTEEHEROREERAREEAS - EXfIsk
compensation paid or payable to key management for employee ENEFEEEAENEERETMUOT -

services is shown below:

2016 2015

—EB—RE —T—hF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FBT AT

Salaries and other benefits He REMIET 5,130 4,262
Contributions to defined M) E B FUR R T 2] 2 3K

contribution retirement plans 137 114

5,267 4,376
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29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

Below summary of financial assets and financial liabilities by category:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R& B 55 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 BZ—ZF—A"F=A=1+—HILLFE

29. &

SRl cREENREMARE
HYHBEE

BEREDEREERSRBENEZIAT

2016 2015
—E-XRF —ET—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Financial assets EREE
Loans and receivables (note i): B R pE U R oA (B aE) -
Trade and other receivables JFE WS R TR % L A R R TE 10,066 9,000
Cash and bank balances B4 KIRTTH 15,991 22,153
26,057 31,153
Financial liabilities EREE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost BHENTTENSRIBE
(note i); (B&ED -
Trade and other payables JRE < R IE e HL A & A< FRIE 9,200 5,566
Amount due to a JEA — ZAERR AR R X
controlling shareholder - 1,242
Other financial liabilities Hhemasd 248 -
9,448 6,808
Financial liabilities at fair value through  #EiBIBZRIEA FEFER
profit or loss TRIBE
Other financial liabilities (note ii) et & KT 5,034 =
() Financial instrument not measured at fair value (i) TUATEFEzeBTHE

The financial instruments not measured at fair value include trade
and other receivables, cash and bank balances, trade and other
payables, amount due to a controlling shareholder and convertible
bonds. Due to their short term nature, their carrying value

approximates fair value.

TARAFEFEZ S RTABFERKFIAR
Hipfge s RekREZEY - AKX
AR AR TIR - BN — BERABRR IR
NAl# R ES c EREMOEREE - %F
FRE(ESENFEAS -

ERAKEZERARAT —TNFFER
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29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (continued)

(ii)

Financial instrument measured at fair value

The fair value of Convertible Bonds Il (contingent consideration
payables) was a level 3 fair value measurements. Binominal tree
model is used for determination of the fair value of Convertible

29. IR¥E R &l D

THEERTREE

E’W&E@

(if)

AFEHEZSRTA
R T — (1S T
B=MATEE - —BXERELANE

EARRES — (BNIAREBE)I R TR

Bond Il (contingent consideration payables) as at 31 March 2016. F=A=+t—HBZAFE - ZEE 28 AR
The inputs into the model were as follows: BT

31 March 2016
—E-RE
=A=+—~H
Expected future share price (HK$) TR B RAR(E (B T) 0.32
Exercise price (HK$) TEEBGET) 0.70
Expected additional yield spread TEERFE SN R Z 1R 7.66%
Expected volatility SEL VA 63.06%
Risk-free interest rate 4 [ i 1) == 0.81%

Any change in the major inputs into the model will result in
changes in the fair value of the Convertible Bonds Il (contingent
consideration payables). If the future share price at expected
issuance date increased by 5%, with other parameters remain
future unchanged, the fair value of the Convertible Bonds
Il (contingent consideration payables) would increase by
approximately HK$204,000 while future share price at expected
issuance date decreased by 5%, the fair value of the Convertible
Bonds Il (contingent consideration payables) would decrease by
approximately HK$213,000. There was no change in valuation
method during the year. There was also no transfer between levels
during the year.

As the issuance of Convertible Bonds Il was subject to the Profit
Guarantee as described in note 22(b), it is classified as contingent
consideration payables and is accounted for at fair value during
the year ended 31 March 2016.

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

3 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly; and

3 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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29. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 29. ZEREI s eRMEEREMERS
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (continued) BT E )
(i) Financial instrument measured at fair value (continued) (i) ANAFEFEZE&MIEm®E)
2016
—B R
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—% BR E=5% Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Financial liabilities S@as FET FExT FET FET
Financial liabilities measured at NAFEFEZEREE
fair value
Other financial liabilities Hitomad - - 5,034 5,034
2015
—ZT—hF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— E-R E=MH st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial liabilities s@mas THT FHIT THT FHT
Financial liabilities measured at NATFEFEZCRAR
fair value
Other financial liabilities Hibe®mBE - - - -
Please refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statement for AIRBEARTAISRE AR (ZE=A)EA
reconciliation for financial liabilities carried at fair value based on FEIENSREBEZEHE  F2H56H
significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). MM E22 ©
30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. B 75 o b 5 38
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: including AEENXEBAZZEMERER - SFEINER
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate % EERE - REE SRR RAERE o KK
risk. The Group’s overall risk management procedures focus on the MERRREERFITHEUTENN ST
unpredictability of financial markets and seek to minimise potential % WEKBRERRY EEENBRAMERD
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. BEEETE -
The Group undertakes certain purchase transactions denominated REBETE TUIINEHENRERS
in foreign currencies, hence exposure to exchange rate A E R B FTE £ R ER o N5 B3R R
fluctuations arises. The Group currently does not have a foreign WREINEERECE - Al - AKEEEREES
currency hedging policy. However, the management of the Group EFNERRRENERTEREBEHNER
monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging HNEE [\ Bz

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises.

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange fluctuation of REBEZAZBT([BT]) « Ex([=
the Euro (“EUR"), United States dollar (“USD”) and Renminibi T RAREE (T AR 1) 5B T H) SNE R 2
("RMB") against HK$. BB o

EREEEERBRAT —T—<FFH% 113
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30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Since HK$ is pegged to USD, management considers that there is
no significant foreign currency risk between these two currencies
to the Group.

The Group's trade payables denominated in EUR and RMB are in
insignificant amount at the end of each of reporting periods. The
directors are of the opinion that the volatility of the Group’s profits
against change in exchange rate of EUR and RMB would not be
significant. Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is performed.

Credit risk includes risks resulting from counter party default and
risks of concentration. The Group has no significant credit risk
as most of the retail sales are made in cash or by credit cards. In
respect of sales on credit, the Group trades on credit only with
corporate customers who have an established trading history with
the Group. The Group has policies in place for the control and
monitoring of relevant credit risks. These credit evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. As at 31 March 2016, the
trade receivables from the five largest debtors represented 59%
(2015: 42%) of the total trade receivables respectively, while the
largest debtor represented 25% (2015: 20%) of the total trade
receivables respectively. The directors are of the opinion that the
Group does not have significant credit risks because the Group
mainly trades with customers who have established trading history
with the Group. The exposure to credit risk is closely monitored on
an ongoing basis.

The credit risks on rental deposits are considered to be low as they
can be recovered by offsetting against the rental payments.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited because the
counterparties are reputable and creditworthy banks.

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not be able to
meet its obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade and other
payables and amounts due to a Controlling Shareholder, and also
in respect of its cash flow management. The cash management
of all operating entities is centralised, including the raising of
funds to cover expected cash demands. The Group's objective
is to maintain sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

As at 31 March 2016 and 2015, the Group's financial liabilities will
be due for settlement either on demand or within one year. The
liquidity policies have been consistently applied by the Group and
are considered effective in managing the liquidity risks.

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets and
liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market interest rate.

31. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's capital management objectives are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital and to support
the Group's stability and growth.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure, taking into consideration the future capital requirements of
the Group, to ensure optimal shareholder returns.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of a debt-to-equity
ratio. For this purpose, net debt includes borrowing less cash and bank

balances while equity comprises share capital and reserves.

The debt-to-equity ratio at the end of reporting period was as follows:

30. IR EE

31.

MENE [ By BN £R [ R BE S A L DA SR AN 3R
SREMEREEFECRARZEERH
R B - AREBEBERNFIEREAMmE
IR R B — R R RGRIBIA R s L3R
EREEETEAZRDESRER - IR
LERCVASERBTTRERE  BEEE
BeAENRBREER - AEBZBRE
RHERFRHRSHE  WnREEHAERRE
HHRBEEFK

REZB—RFR_ZT-—AF=A=+—H"
AEBEZSRAGERIMER  EIIRER
ER—FAERN - AEBDERERRDE
SHE  ZEBRBE AU AREERDE
LR

HRAEE T EERANGEREE  SEMNK

=47
B o

BEXREREE
AEHEZEAEEBREDREASENFES
B URBRREHRDRESEMmNEEREE R
i ERREEAEBIARDESRAARX
¥ OBREBZBEMRERZEES -

AEBEEREE e REREEAEE R
ERAREZRRESHTE - NERAERER
RO -

AEEL R MR EARIARNEE o 3
WHE  FABEEERRRSRRTER T
a5 B R B o

REREPRHEEAN B BRI TMT ¢

2016 2015

—E—RE —E-RE

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T

Net Debt FEIE (15,991) (22,153)
Equity s 78,755 52,738
Debt to equity ratio B ERkm =X (20%) (42 %)

ERAKEERERAE T RFFR
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32. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE  32. AN /A Tl B RS HR SR A 22

116

COMPANY
2016 2015
—E-RE “T—AF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
MiE FHET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B A RMEE 44,717 =
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 44,717 =
Current assets REEE
Other receivable H b e W 308 23 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUT I B A B FIE 23,013 16,227
Bank balances and cash e RIRITHESR 10,593 17,361
Total current assets RBEERAE 33,629 33,588
Total assets BERAE 78,346 33,588
Current liabilities REBAE
Other financial liabilities Husmas 5,035 =
Total current liabilities e B ERE 5,035 -
Net current assets REEEFE 28,594 33,588
Total assets less current liabilities BEEAERARBEE 73,311 33,588
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Other financial liabilities Hpsmas 248 -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBLEE 248 =
NET ASSETS EEFE 73,063 33,588
EQUITY s
Share capital AR 24 4,196 4,000
Reserves i 26 68,867 29,588
TOTAL EQUITY EREE 73,063 33,588

Represents amount less than HK$1,000

On behalf of the Board
REEFS

*

Hui Kwok Keung Raymond (FFEi3&)

Director BF
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Hue Kwok Chiu (FrE&l)
Director BF
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For the year ended 31 March 2016 &

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 4 May 2016, First Batch of Convertible Bonds Il with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$9,620,245 were converted into 13,743,207
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each at the conversion price of HK$0.7 per
share.

PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Group’s subsidiaries as at 31 March 2016 are as

33. REHIREIE
RZZT—AFRFEA - NE4REE9,620,2458 7T
ZE— A BMBES - BRER0.7B T2 HIBE
HH/513,743,207 R EREEC.01B T2 iR ©

34. MiB A RRFE
ARER-F-AF=A=+-BZHBAAF

BTE—

ANEZA=t+-BLEEFE

follows: B
Issued and Attributable
fully paid equity interest
Place and date of share capital  held by the Group  Principal activities
Name incorporation/establishment BEIK AEEFREALN  and place of operation
A AL/ PR R B BrRBRA RS TEXRB LR
Top Triumph Global Limited BVI, 20 November 2013 Us$1 100% direct Investment holding
RBRUES (0 100% & % REER
“E—=ft—A=tH
Central United Global Limited BVI, 18 November 2010 Us$100 100% indirect Investment holding
RERAES - 100%7T 100% itz REEK
“E-EFT—A+/N\A
Elegant Chain Development BVI, 8 August 2008 Us$140 100% indirect Investment holding
Limited RERUES 140% 7T 100%feifz RERK
—ZEZ\FNANB
Top Investor Global Limited BVI, 11 November 2014 Us$1 100% indirect Investment holding
RERAEE %70 100% A5 REZR
“Z-mEt+—-At—H
Central Sky Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 24 October 2003 HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products in
RRERER AR A% ZEE=E+AZ1IA 107%87T 100% Hong Kong
RERTERMER
E Lighting Group Limited Hong Kong, 4 January 2011 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
B8 —F——%—HMA 10,0007  100%/E# and household furniture
in Hong Kong
REBTERHERRKA
Element Lighting Design Limited Hong Kong, 11 May 2005 HK$10 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
RARAERAR B8 —ZTREAATA 107%87T 100% &% and household furniture

in Hong Kong
REETERHERRKE

ERAKEZERARAT —TNFFER 117
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34. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (ontinued) 34. it B A TS @

Issued and Attributable

fully paid equity interest
Place and date of share capital ~ held by the Group  Principal activities
Name incorporation/establishment BETR AEEMFEAER  and place of operation
A Bl agsave: Y 4= N BRI bR AR TEXRBRE R
Good Harvest Surplus Limited Hong Kong, 20 May 2011 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
ELRARAA BE —E——FRA-TH 1B 100% and household furniture
in Hong Kong
REBZERMERRKEA
RS Holdings Limited Hong Kong, 23 February 2009 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
B8 —TTNF-RA=T=H 10,0007 100%E# and household furniture
in Hong Kong
REBTERMERRKE
228 Inc Limited Hong Kong, 6 November 2013 HK$10,000 100% indirect Retail of lighting products in
BB —F-—ZF+—AKH 10,0007 100%E# Hong Kong
REBTERMER
Culture Art Limited Hong Kong, 6 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
XEBRRAA &% ZT-ME+AKH BT 100% fif# and household furniture
in Hong Kong
REBTERHERRKA
Major Will Limited Hong Kong, 6 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
% ZE-DmETAKRA 17T 100% [ and household furniture
in Hong Kong
REBZERMERRKEA
ELG Operations Limited Hong Kong, 14 October 2014 HK$ 1 100% indirect Sourcing of lighting
ERASEZERRAR B —T-METATEA 1787T 100%[E# products and household
furniture
REBROHERRKE
ELG Management Limited Hong Kong, 14 October 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Provision of management
ERPSEEEARAR &R _T-ME+ATEA 18T 100% & services
RUERRE

118 E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016



34. PARTICULARS OF THE SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #r& B 75 R & i 5

For the year ended 31 March 2016 %

34. i B A BB @)

E=®—

ANEZA=t+-BLEEFE

Issued and Attributable
fully paid equity interest
Place and date of share capital ~ held by the Group  Principal activities
Name incorporation/establishment BETR AEEFFEAR  and place of operation
A Pt/ PR R B BrRBRA RS FEEBRETME
Urban Lifestyle Limited Hong Kong, 26 November 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
& —E—mE+—B-+~H 1557 100% &4 and household furniture
in Hong Kong
REBZERMERRKE
Urban Urban Limited Hong Kong, 26 November 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
B8 ZE-ME+—A=1H 1787T 100% [ and household furniture
in Hong Kong
REBTERMERRKE
Real Luck Limited Hong Kong, 1 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of lighting products
B8 —ET-ME+=R—AH V& 100% [ and household furniture
in Hong Kong
NEBTERMERRKE
Trendmall Tableware & Hong Kong, 2 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Wholesale business in
Giftware Limited BB _T—NF+-A=A 187 100% f# tableware market of
worldwide
RERZHTSHEER
Trendmall Gallery Limited Hong Kong, 15 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Retail of tableware and
L EEERR AR B ZE-mE+-A+HA 17T 100% &% giftware in Hong Kong
REEZEEARER
Trendmall Design Limited Hong Kong, 15 December 2014 HK$1 100% indirect Investment holding
B8 —Z-MET_A+hH 1% 100% fil# REER

Note:

end of the year.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the

35. APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for

issue by the board of directors on 22 June 2016.

35.

P& - BB~ N R IAL B HTEMES

E#

BRSSP H®R

HEPBRRER-_ZT-—R"FAA-+_HER
REEFSHEL AT -

ERAKEZERARAT —TNFFER
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

By 5 =

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1T—HLEE

2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-RE —FT—HF —TNOF —FT—=
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHTT THTT THEIT
OPERATING RESULTS P
Revenue X 106,488 80,416 79,158 68,779
Cost of sales SHER A (57,089) (35,370) (31,975) (28,865)
Gross profit EF 49,399 45,046 47,183 39,914
Other income and gain H A R e 19,330 107 = =
Selling and distribution expenses  $4& kD45 (41,332) (36,824) (29,559) (24,031)
Administrative and other expenses  {TE R E MBI (21,576) (20,570) (10,100) (5,261)
Finance costs BA RS AR AR (10) - — _
Profit/(Loss) before tax BFLBEF(E5E) 5,811 (12,241) 7,524 10,622
Income tax expense FiS X (154) (456) (1,667) (1,567)
Profit/(Loss) and total RN AEE AEMN
comprehensive income for FRRF (BB R
the year attributable to the RHEKEAE
owners of the Company 5,657 (12,697) 5,857 9,055
As at 31 March
R=B=+—H
2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-RE —T—hFE —ZET-NFE —ET-=4F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT T IT T IT THEIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERARE
Total assets BEMRE 95,765 60,820 32,532 23,865
Total liabilities BERE (17,010) (8,082) (11,431) (8,621)
Net assets EERE 78,755 52,738 21,101 15,244
Equity R 78,755 52,738 21,101 15,244

E Lighting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2016
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